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CHAPTER 1
OVERVIEW
In this chapter you will find out what Emakina is all about
– our ‘DNA’, if you like – through our vision statement,
recent activities, latest figures, thinking and developments.
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DIGITAL IS DEAD
This isn’t what you expect to hear from the Chief Executives of a digital agency. But
we can’t deny it: there is no longer any need for digital as a specialist area. Digital is
everywhere, all of the time, and must be integrated into every part of communication.
And that is what the ‘digitalisation’ of the world really means.

Despite the economic crisis, Emakina made its way
through 2014 continuing to grow, generating profits
and making winning new investments. We also began
to thrive in a field that – before now – we had barely
explored, namely e-commerce.
In terms of growth and profitability, our consolidated
revenues grew by 12% compared with 2013. Meanwhile, earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation (EBITDA) increased by 33% in comparison with 2013. In absolute terms, revenues hit
€56,135 million and EBITDA reached €4,053 million,
or 7.2% of total sales.
Amongst our successful investments was Emakina’s
acquisition of the French advertising business, Toy
Agency, which has broadened and strengthened the
group’s creative axis. This was shown to good effect
in the television campaign for dating site Attractive
World, and online and offline communication for
Solaris Group, a global specialist in solar power
plant services.
Emakina.NL has continued to develop its services,
proving that our investment in this Dutch division
is already bearing fruit: recent client wins include
Unilever Food Solutions and a partnership with Yves
Rocher Benelux, clearly positioning Emakina.NL
as a major figure in the communications sector in
the Netherlands.
Emakina Group has also successfully managed a
rationalisation of its services, including investing in
new production facilities in Izmir (at Emakina.TR) and
integrating Emakina.EU (a specialist in institutional
communications) into Emakina.BE. This has resulted

in economies of scale and a better distribution of
skills amongst the various teams.
In the same spirit, we have brought all audiovisual
production staff, digital and integrated communication specialists, plus strategy and conversation
managers from Emakina / Social, together under one
roof. They are all now part of a department called
Emakina / Communication, and share a communal
work space that is bubbling with creativity and ideas
that are always ahead of their time.
All this is part of an overall strategy aimed at bringing
together areas of expertise in communication so
that our projects offer ever more added value to our
customers. Just one example: the Education Above
All website created by Emakina for the EAA foundation – a global initiative to provide opportunities for
poor and marginalised children, young people and
women in the developing world – was one of 2014’s
great successes. It won no fewer than five awards at
the global W³ competition, which recognises creative
excellence on the Web. It won the prestigious label
‘Website of the Day’ from the CSS Design Awards and
a MIXX award in the category of Best Web design.
The cherry on the cake was being named ‘Website
of the Day’ on the renowned Awwwards platform.

NO LINE
Below the line, above the line, online, offline… Actually, there’s no line any more. Our headline ‘Digital
is Dead’ describes the fall of the final walls that
remained between digital and the whole gamut of
integrated communication.

DIGITAL IS DEAD. LONG LIVE DIGITAL!
Karim Chouikri, CEO
Brice Le Blévennec, CEO
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2014, A YEAR
RICH IN CHANGE

NEW EMAKINA WEBSITE
As a digital agency, it was important for Emakina to showcase its skills on a new website. So it was goodbye to static
pages and hello to responsive design, sleek and personalised
content. With improved graphics and better integration with
social networks, Emakina’s new website is a perfect example
of the agency’s expertise in web building.

EMAKINA BROUGHT HOME
6 MIXX AWARDS
Emakina’s successes were up in lights at the ceremony for the
IAB MIXX Awards 2014. After a rousing presentation from Brice
Le Blévennec, Emakina won six awards recognising the specialist
expertise of three of its agencies. Two ‘Web Design’ awards
were brought home by Emakina.BE, two ‘Social’ accolades
were taken by Your Agency, and two ‘Optimised Websites’
prizes went to The Reference.

NEW CENTRE OF COMPETENCE:
EMAKINA / INSIGHTS
Emakina has always thought about the end consumer in its
work. But now the agency has gone a step further by creating
its own customer research department: Emakina / Insights.
This new team helps companies integrate the needs of their
target audience in their strategies, through listening, interacting with and truly understanding them. The department also
conducts B2B studies with companies’ employees.

ACQUISITION OF TOY AGENCY
In a move to strengthen creative teams and advertising
expertise in France, Emakina bought all shares in Toy Agency,
a French creative advertising specialist. This marks a turning
point for the agency: at a stroke, the move has consolidated
our expertise in advertising communication and in traditional
marketing. The founder of Toy, Nicolas de Dampierre, has
joined the executive committee of Emakina.FR, taking the
lead on creative direction.

BRAND EXPERIENCE PLATFORM
At the end of 2014, Emakina unveiled a completely original
method for managing trademarks, the Brand Experience
Platform©. We also revealed a new way of ranking brands in
different sectors, which we have called the Brand Experience
Score©. The Brand Experience Score© is a rating system
that combines the expected, lived and shared experience
of a brand – in other words, the promise, the reality and the
reputation. It took almost two years of research and development to create this sophisticated system.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT (EUR) *

31/12/2014

31/12/2013

31/12/2012

OPERATING INCOME

56,135,588

50,117,336

48,783,064

Operating costs (before depreciation)

-52,082,281

-47,060,983

-45,027,552

OPERATING PROFIT (BEFORE DEPRECIATION)

4,053,307

3,056,353

3,755,512

Depreciation

-1,692,033

-1,340,574

-1,361,478

Operating profit

2,361,274

1,715,779

2,394,034

Financial result

-460,281

81,283

-349,762

PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE AMORTISATION OF
GOODWILL

1,900,993

1,797,062

2,044,272

Amortisation of goodwill **

-1,619,758

-1,028,432

-1,507,875

Current profit

281,235

768,630

536,397

Exceptional income

-343,151

-43,782

42,971

Gross profit

-61,916

724,848

579,368

Deferred tax

-61,467

-11,193

-217,783

Taxes on income

-730,101

-550,762

-822,927

0

-14,326

6,247

NET INCOME BEFORE AMORTISATION OF GOODWILL

766,274

1,176,999

1,052,780

Net income

-853,484

148,567

-455,095

278,666

193,264

-31,762

-1,132,150

-44,697

-423,333

31/12/2014

31/12/2013

31/12/2012

Fixed assets

10,176,907

11,171,038

9,518,823

Current assets

24,759,589

22,450,532

20,878,538

Total assets

34,936,496

33,621,570

30,397,361

EQUITY

9,135,600

10,266,607

9,665,965

670,128

338,629

8,634

23,648,082

20,785,543

19,131,745

8%

11%

11%

PER SHARE DATA

31/12/2014

31/12/2013

31/12/2012

Share price (in EUR)

8,00

8,33

8,30

Number of shares

3,844,061

3,844,061

3,833,739

Market capitalisation (in EUR)

30,752,488

32,021,028

31,820,034

Given number of warrants

97,720

151,150

208,220

Current earnings/share (in EUR)

0,073

0,200

0,140

Group share/share (EUR)

-0,295

-0,012

-0,110

Net earnings/share (EUR)

-0,222

0,039

-0,119

NET INCOME BEFORE DEPRECIATION FOR GOODWILL
CONSOLIDATION/SHARE (EUR)**

0,199

0,306

0,275

Share in the results of companies in consolidation using the Equity Method

KEY FACTS AND
FIGURES 2014

A. Minority interests
B. Group share

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (EUR) *

Third party interests

FRÉDÉRIC DESONNAY

Current liabilities

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

NET INCOME BEFORE AMORTISATION OF GOODWILL/ RETURN ON
EQUITY

Frédéric Desonnay graduated from the business administration faculty at the Université de Liège in Belgium in 2000,
and then took a Master of Arts in international business at
Leicester University in the UK. He joined the auditing section of Ernst&Young in Brussels as audit manager, and then
facilitated Emakina Group’s IPO in 2006. In 2007, he joined
Emakina Group as Chief Financial Officer. As a member of the
group’s executive committee, he has been overseeing financial
management (including reports, the treasury, internal controls
and enterprise resource planning) during this period of strong
growth. He is supported by the group controller, reporting
directly to stakeholders comprising the board of directors,
audit committee, shareholders, bankers, auditors and other
external consultants.

* Prepared in accordance with belgian gaap.
** Contrary to the IFRS international accounting standards, Belgian accounting standards require depreciation on goodwill that significantly affects the consolidated net income of
the company.
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KEY
FIGURES 2014

CHANGES IN EBITDA

4.500.000
4.000.000

3,755,512

3.500.000

+33%
4,053,307
-19%
3,056,353

3.000.000
2.500.000

CHANGES IN TURNOVER

2.000.000
1.500.000
1.000.000

+ 12%
56,135,588

500.000
2012

60.000.000
55.000.000

48,783,064

2013

2014

+ 3%
50,117,336

CHANGES IN THE SIZE OF STAFF ON 31ST DECEMBER EACH YEAR

50.000.000

(FULL TIME EQUIVALENT)*

45.000.000

+18%
488

550

40.000.000

500

35.000.000

450

30.000.000

400

25.000.000

350

+4%
508

413

300

20.000.000

250

15.000.000

200

10.000.000

150

5.000.000

100
50

2012

2013

2014

2012

* On 31st December 2014, the group had a total of 538 employees.

2013

2014
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MISSION
Our mission is to guide businesses and organisations
through their digital transformation so that they
can develop new lines of business, better customer
experiences and quite simply work better.

WHY?
The digitalisation of our world has very quickly changed the
way that individuals and organisations interact. And it is leading
to an economy centred on the individual.
Digital Natives – as we call the people born into this digital
era – are permanently connected.
They have powerful tools to hand, make themselves better
heard, and have higher expectations in terms of access to
information and a quality service. This hyper-connected
generation expects 24/7, all-channel access to every service.
It looks for organisations to demonstrate their transparency
and wants to make a greater personal footprint on the world
– possibly, even the chance to help make it a better place.
We all need to adapt to the new laws of the Digital Era.
Digital transformation began in the media, retail and financial services sectors – all industries faced with unavoidable
changes. But from now on, every type of business needs to
be innovative, and every marketing expert should challenge
the old strategies and offer customers an experience where
digital comes first.
Businesses that use new technologies to best effect will
end up with a better digital experience involving more user
engagement, increased operational efficiency and a strategy
that leads to new business lines or models.

O V E R V I E W / P. 1 4
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VALUES
Creativity & Innovation
We invite collaboration between radically different
kinds of talent, and that’s our secret recipe to push
the boundaries of innovation and creativity.
Passion & Commitment
We are passionate about our business and inspired
as much by technological developments as by the
new ways they make people behave.
Sharing & Openness
Our centres of expertise are entirely complementary
thanks to our spirit of openness and talent-sharing.
Transparency & Accountability
We feel responsible for the projects that we work
on, and the results they achieve. We behave in a
transparent way with our clients, and consider them
our partners.
Relevance & Effectiveness
We are driven by common sense and pragmatism.
We always seek to add value to a brief and measure
our success by how satisfied our customers feel,
and their project’s return on investment.

O V E R V I E W / P. 1 6
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VISION
I do not think that our economy is in crisis, but rather that it is going through a period of digital change.
What are the challenges of this period of transition? And how can businesses and marketing agencies
turn it into a source of opportunity?
Just as the invention of printing and
television changed our society, then
became the source of whole new economic sectors, this digital transformation
that we are living through is a revolution.
Objects are increasingly made out of bits
instead of atoms, which is causing a shift
in the very foundations of our economic
system. It is mainly the leisure products
that we are talking about: music, films,
games, magazines and comics can now
be beamed out at the speed of light. And
these digitally-relayed products have
made physical distribution obsolete and
destroyed the old distributors. Virtual
goods can be copied an infinite number
of times, so much so that it has changed
the meaning of ‘sharing’: once, this word

meant ‘to divide’, but now it means ‘to In addition, this digital shift has profoundly
multiply’. In other words, this is now an altered the nature of interactions between
economy of plenty.
individuals and businesses, and the power
relationship between brands and their
In this new economy where leisure products
clients, between states and their citizens.
multiply rapidly and endlessly, people have
Individuals have more power to influence
the same dozen hours a day to devote
things: they are now connected all of the
to consuming them. The price of these
time and have effective ways to make
products tends to diminish to zero. Hutheir voices heard.
mans still reproduce, but at a significantly
slower speed than the multiplication of Brand communication, which was once so
BitTorrent films. The value of products powerful, is now drowned in a never-endwill no longer be decided upon by their ing ocean of media possibilities sheltered
scarcity but by their relevance. In more from advertising. For organizations, it is
concrete terms, the success of Spotify or no longer about imposing their products
NetFlix will not be about the size of their and services by hitting the largest possible
catalogues but their editorial selection, target audience with interrupting adverand the relevance of the suggestions they tisements, but focusing on what their
make to their customers.
market wants, designing relevant brand

content that is meaningful or useful for the consumer in order and venture into the perilous terrain of innovation! Whether
that means pushing the limits of user experience or supportto win entry into this customer’s world.
ing companies in creating new business models, nowadays
In order to survive, organizations must adapt to the new rules
companies need an agency that has a digital spirit even when
of the game. They must question themselves and offer a user
it is thinking about their bricks and mortar.
experience that is coherent, integrated and worthwhile on
offline and digital platforms. Above all, they must be innovative. So today’s marketing agencies need to develop a new culture,
Mobile, social media, and connected objects mean countless combining the technical skills necessary to offer customers
opportunities to create or improve products, services, tools and ‘state-of-the-art’ projects (e-commerce, content CMS, applisolutions. A successful move to digital
cations, analytics) with essential creative
allows organizations to improve three
skills like strategy, concept, and design.
“Leave the communication comareas with a strong impact on the
They need the ability to understand a
fort zone and venture into the
bottom line: they build better client
customer’s business like one of its own
perilous terrain of innovation”
‘engagement’ (increasing existing
directors, to analyse the challenges of
revenue streams), improve producits sector like a Big Four consulting firm,
tivity (reducing costs) and generate new sources of revenue. and to combine business know-how with the inventiveness of
somebody launching a start-up... What Emakina has actually
To do all this, companies must call on a new type of marketing
been doing for a while.
agency that helps its customers become more effective by
offering fresh tools; that develops integrated marketing strategies; that is media neutral, using the most relevant channel
in each case; that follows consumer needs throughout the
whole cycle of the interaction; but, more than anything, an
Brice Le Blévennec, Chief Visionary Officer
agency that dares to leave the communication comfort zone

O V E R V I E W / P. 1 8
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ACTION STATIONS

EXPERTISE

Business model

•

Reach new customers and
markets.

•

Launch new activities.

•

Develop new business models or
strategies.

•

Move products and services from
physical to digital.

User experience

Internal operations

•

Improve the user experience.

•

Automate operational processes.

•

Launch new products and services.

•

Improve worker productivity.

•

Improve existing products and
services.

•

Improve internal communication.

•

Ensure consistency across all
channels.

•

Provide more relevant information.

Innovation

Integration

Implementation

For many customers, innovation is now
unavoidable due to radical change in their
market sector or in product development.

Consumers are finding it harder and
harder to focus upon one thing. At the
same time, different communication
channels are being integrated ever
more quickly.

Our technological know-how and centres
of expertise will be increasingly important
to marketing people. We build bridges
between marketing and technology,
creating custom-made solutions that
are effective and relevant: e-commerce
and customer relationship management
(CRM) platforms, loyalty programmes,
websites managed by CMS systems, and
marketing analysis applications.

We help them innovate more and better
than their competition, generating awareness amongst new internet consumers
and redefining the boundaries of their
user experience.

We can work on the entire marketing mix
throughout the life cycle of a consumer’s
interaction with your business, to provide
a fully-integrated marketing strategy. Brand
and user experience are not simply copied
from one channel to another, but perfectly
adapted for each interaction.

O V E R V I E W / P. 2 0

21

THE DIGITAL REVOLUTION:
TIMELINE

Professional web
developers launch
Net @ Work

Tim Berners-Lee
invents the World
Wide Web
Invention of the first browser
and first web page

MySpace becomes
the first popular
social network

Google is created

Skype is born

Napster – first peer to
peer exchange platform –
is launched

Brice Le Blévennec co-founds
Ex Machina

MSN Messenger
debuts

First mobile telephone

One billion
web pages
now exist

Belgium’s first web
agency, The Reference,
is established

Wikipedia
launched

The first meeting of the World
Wide Web Consortium takes
place
Online advertising
starts to become
the norm

Launch of Flickr,
which today hosts
more than five
billion photos

Design is Dead
is founded

Yahoo! is
launched by David
Filo and Jerry
Yang
Jeff Bezos starts
Amazon.com

Six Degrees,
the first
social
networking
site, is
launched

Twitter sees the light
of day
Creation of Emakina Group
and start of trading on
Alternext (ALEMK)

Network Solution
offers domain
names for 100
years

1995

Groupe Reflect
becomes Emakina.FR

Commercial partnership between
Emakina and SinnerSchrader (Germany
and Czech Republic)
End of the Apple era, with the death of Steve Jobs

Acquisition of shares in Robert & Marien, ATL media agency

Acquisition of Merge
Media in The Hague (NL)

Acquisition of Troy Agency, a communications agency
Launch of
Emakina / Insights
Acquisition of Label, in Geneva, which then becomes Emakina.CH

Emakina named No.1
agency in Media
Marketing and No.2 in
Inside Digital Media
YouTube
launches
Facebook
starts

Denis Steisel establishes
the agency Make It Happen

Commercial partnership between Emakina and Metia (USA, GB and Singapore)

Acquisition of Groupe Reflect
(Paris and Limoges), Design is Dead
(Antwerp), SunTzu (Rotterdam) and
The Reference (Ghent)

Strategic partnership
with Piramit (TR)

Acquisition of Wanabe in Waterloo (Belgium), which then becomes Your Agency

From 2010, Inside Digital Media names Emakina Belgium’s top agency

Emakina / Media, the first 100%
digital media agency, is co-founded

Acquisition of Relephant in Amsterdam, which becomes Emakina.NL

Commercial partnership with Dempsey (SE)

Make It Happen
changes its name
to Emalaya

Launch of Emakina
centres of expertise

Emakina.EU, the communications
agency for institutions, is co-founded

Ex Machina Interactive Architects
and Emalaya join to become
Emakina

2000

Commercial partnership between
Emakina and Digital Jungle (China,
Japan and Australia)

Emakina is named No.1
agency by Pub magazine

Acquisition of Toy Agency, a creative agency

Commercial partnership between Emakina and Bubblegum (ES)
Commercial partnership between
Emakina and Domino (IT)

SunTzu becomes Emakina.NL

1990

The Reference buys
Proudfield

The iPad is created

The iPhone
is born

Ex Machina splits into Ex Machina
Interactive Architects and Ex
Machina Graphic Design
The
internet
bubble
bursts

Almost 95% of ‘digital natives’ use the
internet from their mobile phones

Launch of the first online Belgian
TV channel, ‘VW Escape TV’, which
lasted three years

2005

2010

2015
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CHAPTER 2
OUR SERVICES
Our civilisation changed at the start of the digital era, and it is still
changing. The stage has been set for constant revolution in the way
we communicate, profound shifts in business models, changes in how
companies operate, and above all, countless innovations in products,
services and solutions for our customers.
To take companies hand in hand through their digital transformation,
Emakina Group has built four core businesses: integrated and interactive communication, website building, application development and
e-commerce.
These four major activities draw on nine dedicated teams of specialists in strategy, analysis, architecture, media buying, direct marketing,
search engine marketing, social media marketing, audiovisual production and managed web hosting.
Overall, more than 500 experts gathered under our roof design and deliver relevant, custom-made and effective solutions to help Emakina’s
customers do their work even better.
Our four core businesses
Emakina / Communication
Emakina / Web building
Emakina / Applications
Emakina / Commerce

P. 24
P. 26
P. 28
P. 30
P. 32

Our nine centres of expertise
Emakina / Strategy
Emakina / Insights
Emakina / Architects
Emakina / Media
Emakina / Direct
Emakina / Perform
Emakina / Social
Emakina / Motion
Emakina / Operations

P. 34
p. 35
P. 36
P. 37
P. 38
P. 39
P. 40
P. 41
P. 42
P. 43

O U R S E R V I C E A N D W H AT W E O F F E R / P. 24

25

OUR FOUR
CORE BUSINESSES

EMAKINA / COMMUNICATION

EMAKINA / WEB BUILDING

EMAKINA / APPLICATIONS

EMAKINA / COMMERCE

O U R S E R V I C E A N D W H AT W E O F F E R / P. 2 6
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DIGITAL IS DEAD
The internet revolutionised the way we communicate,
with its two-way channels giving new powers to the
consumer in talking back. All brands have had to re-evaluate their advertising tactics, and marketing agencies
specialising in digital have risen to the fore. Nowadays,
digital is everywhere. Both traditional agencies and
digital ones have had to reinvent themselves to avoid
being taken over or disappearing.
Emakina was born into this new digital world. In our
15 years, we’ve been pioneers in viral marketing, we
created online communities before Facebook did,
and our agency was a veritable Michaelangelo of
spectacular, Flash web pages. Today, after acquiring
and incorporating traditional advertising agencies
and merging their skills with those of our ‘Digital
Natives’, Emakina / Communication is the agency for
the Digital Era.
We offer our customers support at all stages of their
journey: finding and winning new customers, then
managing customer relationships and forging lasting
loyalty through our multi-channel platforms that always
use the most relevant point of contact.
From briefing us to seeing our final work, customers
can count on the dynamism, creativity and technical
skills of our talented people, who make up a flexible
and effective team (at a competitive price too).
We can draw on the minds of 200 people in our
business, a mixture of wise old hands and raw young
talent that can deliver all types of communication
solution: an all-encompassing strategy, CRM platform,
audiovisual production, social media management,
above-the-line mass media campaign, digital activation, or a point of sale device (traditional or digital) to
create and position a new brand… We even have our
own recording studio, resident musicians and a studio
equipped with a green screen.

EMAKINA / COMMUNICATION

We only think about relationships with our customers
in the long term: we believe this is the sole way to build
a deep understanding of each customer’s business and
its challenges, so that our proposals are relevant and
make a genuine contribution to company results. And
this is why our customers are so loyal to us.

CLIENTS
Integrated communication strategy / Production / Strategic planning
Direct marketing / CRM / Social media marketing / Content production
Radio / TV / Print / Motion / Brand design / Brand identity / Creative conception

Barilla, Brantano, Test-Achats, Ladbrokes, Deutsche
Bank, Bavaria, Lindemans, JC Decaux, Orange, Nike
France, Brasserie Michard, Air Canada, Karl Lagerfeld

O U R S E R V I C E A N D W H AT W E O F F E R / P. 2 8
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BUILDING A BETTER WEB
We have come a long way: when it started, Emakina
was a simple web marketing agency. We are pioneers
in this field, the biggest specialist in the Belgian market,
with unparalleled experience. This business evolves
constantly and we are happy to say that it keeps us on
our toes! Our sites use the most advanced technologies while remaining compatible with most browsers.
Our interfaces use the most up-to-date, ergonomic
understanding but are also fun to navigate.
We have designed or developed website, intranets
and extranets for vast companies, famous names,
multinational businesses, institutions, associations and
SMEs. Far from web agencies that make the same kind
of site over and over again, we offer our customers a
custom-designed website that faithfully reflects their
brand, and is perfectly integrated into their digital
ecosystem and back office, however complex they
might be. Nowadays, these sites are often the main
contact point for customers, and they contribute to
how much a business is valued and the success of its
business objectives.
The size and reputation of our agency mean we have
the opportunity to attract some amazing talents,
passionate people who stay bang up to date with the
constant innovation in front-end and back-end interface
development. Our web designers can create something
new within the strictest guidelines, and come up with
web experiences that are fun, ergonomic, elegant and
effective. Our analysts and developers guarantee that
projects have a solid and scalable architecture. We are
masters in the art of combining technology (such as
responsive websites, Full-Stack Javascript, or progressive
loading) with pages that are a pleasure to navigate.

EMAKINA / WEB BUILDING

Thanks to our experience, we have developed several project management methodologies (both agile
and waterfall). Some are suitable for small projects,
and others are best for managing larger and more
complex sites. We have brought together a team of
Project Managers who can meet quality and budget
requirements, deliver on time, but always make sure
our customers have the flexibility they need. As for
our Account Managers, all they want is to make our
clients happy.

CLIENTS
Business requirements / Information Architecture / Responsive Web design
Content production / Website development / Intranet & extranet
CMS implementation (Adobe Experience Management, Acquia, Drupal, SDL, Tridion,
Sitecore, EPIServer, Umbraco, Sharepoint, SiteFinity, Wordpress) / IT integration
Search engine optimisation & traffic analysis

Greenpeace, Luminus, BNP Paribas Fortis, Brussels
Airlines, iDBUS, IP Plurimedia (RTL), Crelan, Education
Above All, Electrabel, Audi Import, D’Ieteren Group,
Makro, Shurgard Europe, DELA, iMinds, Orange, i24news,
Nike France, Karl Lagerfeld, Nestlé, Oris, Ocean Capital,
Girard-Perregaux, International Skating Union, Terre
des Hommes, Freeride World Tour, Swissquote, Loterie
Romande, ERGO insurance.

O U R S E R V I C E A N D W H AT W E O F F E R / P. 3 0
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DIGITAL AT YOUR FINGERTIPS
Emakina was born as a web agency in 2001, and has
constantly developed all types of applications that
work through web browsers: some that work on
intranets or extranets, e-commerce sites, portals for
various transactions and sites for companies that only
operate through the internet (applications for estate
agents, online directories, and tools to help create
online activity, for instance).
This activity is still a big part of what Emakina does, but
since the introduction of iOS(2007), Android (2008) and
their application stores, we have added a whole new area
of app development. Today, we develop applications
for smartphones, tablets, monitors, multi-touch tables,
game consoles, virtual or augmented reality helmets,
interactive installations and connected objects.
Over the years, we have built an experienced and
multi-disciplinary team of people who are passionate
about innovation and are always on top of technological
software developments (such as operating systems,
API framework, or software) and the latest in hardware
(for example, the internet of things, customised, interactive installations, iBeacons, experimental projects,
and products linked to the internet of things).
Our developers have experience in creating state-ofthe-art touch interfaces and also in integrating these
with often-complex existing business systems. So our
customers can have complete confidence in us to
create a wide variety of software, from a critical transactional application for a bank to a 3D video game for
a big public brand. Applications are now at the heart
of a consumer’s daily life in a world that is right in the
middle of digital transformation.
In addition to developing applications, we create
interactive installations for our customers’ events and
retail networks using breathtaking, almost magical
technology – ideas and products that seem to weave
new links between the digital and real worlds. We
bring into being these unique experiences, coming
up with the idea, creating a prototype, delivering the
final installation and making sure that it runs smoothly.

EMAKINA / APPLICATIONS
Smartphone, mobiles, tablets, touchscreen & gestured controlled development / Advergaming
Social media API / Augmented reality / Virtual reality / Interactive installations
Web applications (Java, Symphony 2,.NET, AngularJS) & web services

CLIENTS
Electrabel, BNP Paribas Fortis, Deutsche Bank, Audi,
AXA, Federal Mogul, FIVB, Start to run, Karl Lagerfeld,
L’Oréal, Volkswagen, Škoda, Porsche, Orange, Jaeger
LeCoultre, Virgin radio, Girard-Perregaux
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E-BUSINESS IS THE BUSINESS
It is hard to stress how much all sectors of our economy
have been affected by internet, first in the way they
must communicate, but then in every company activity.
e-commerce has shaken the business models of giants.
New players have emerged, and entire industries have
disappeared. It is consumers who decide where and
when they want to consume. And each year, more and
more of them make their purchases online.
In its first decade, Emakina launched more than a
dozen e-commerce sites before this became one of
our more formal service offerings. In 2013, we acquired a company specialising in e-commerce, and
this Amsterdam-based agency is now fully integrated
within the Emakina Group.
Our division now has more than a hundred specialists
in strategy, marketing, project management, analysis,
content, search engines, social media, affiliate marketing and CRM, plus designers and developers. So it
approaches each project with a comprehensive understanding of e-commerce. This is all about marrying a
strong visual concept with a smooth and sophisticated
shopping experience, employing a veritable arsenal of
technological tools.
Modern commercial platforms are effectively multi-channel: consumers’ journeys now go through computers,
smartphones, tablets and sales outlets, but they also
involve brand sites, search engines, social media, plus
review, comparison and specialist content sites.
To adapt to this new consumer behaviour, we are
creating e-commerce platforms that do a little more,
combining branding, sales tools, social interaction,
e-mail and consumer advice services. All this is wrapped
up in a coherent, multi-channel and online experience
which serves the brand at all points of contact (digital
and physical).
We are an experienced partner with unbeatable technological know-how, capable of generating relevant
website traffic and converted it into valuable, longterm relationships with consumers that will grow your
online business.

EMAKINA / COMMERCE
CLIENTS
e-commerce strategy / User experience design / Digital activation
Digital shopper marketing / DemandWare implementation
Magento implementation / CRM / Analytics / Hosting

Rituals, Suitsupply, Every Day Counts, de Bijenkorf,
Fontem Ventures, Sundio Group, SeatMe,
Makro Cash & Carry Belgium, Partool, Brady, Kipa,
Blackspade, Markafoni, Zizigo

O U R S E R V I C E A N D W H AT W E O F F E R / P. 3 4
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OUR NINE CENTRES
OF EXPERTISE

EMAKINA / STRATEGY

EMAKINA / INSIGHTS

EMAKINA / ARCHITECTS

EMAKINA / STRATEGY
Integrated communication strategy / Ecosystem conception
CRM Strategy / Social media strategy / Innovation / Ideas centre
Workshops / Brainstorming / Digital transformation / Digital strategy
Change management / Brand positioning and identity
EMAKINA / MEDIA

EMAKINA / DIRECT

EMAKINA / PERFORM

YOUR THINK TANK

CLIENTS

Emakina / Strategy unites around a dozen consultants who can assist you in the digital transformation of your business, whether that means communicating a new message, creating
innovative new products and services, or simply working more efficiently.

Candriam, Electrabel, Federal
Mogul, Wolf Oil Corporation,
Ikea, P&V, Atos Worldine, Dela,
SD Worx, Accent Jobs, Mons
2015, UBP, Ocean Capital,
Loterie Romande, Teknosa,
Kliksa, Markafoni, Zizigo, Koton,
De Lijn

The new possibilities offered by the internet, mobile and social media have a huge impact
on every department in a company. Our multidisciplinary team works with your own teams
(such as marketing, communication, business, and IT) to develop the right strategies to allow
you to achieve your goals.

EMAKINA / SOCIAL

EMAKINA / MOTION

EMAKINA / OPERATIONS

This might involve integrated communication, (a new) brand positioning, a marketing plan,
digital innovations or optimising internal business processes. Whatever the path, we create
a modern, efficient, cross-cutting strategy that integrates online and offline action. And you
can measure the results.

O U R S E R V I C E A N D W H AT W E O F F E R / P. 3 6
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EMAKINA / INSIGHTS

EMAKINA / ARCHITECTS

Consumer insights / Target research / Brand image / Innovation workshops

User-centric design / User experience design / Personas / Eyetracking

Qualitative & quantitative research / Social media analysis / User testing

Information Architecture / Persuasion architecture / Wireframes / User testing

Social trends / Ethnology / Pre- and post- testing

A CONSUMER REALITY CHECK

CLIENTS

EXPERIENCED IN EXPERIENCES

CLIENTS

Our most recently-launched service, Emakina / Insights is a team of psychologists, researchers and analysts with extensive experience in discovering how consumers will respond to
digital transformation. Our experts use special methodologies and interaction tools including
our own, secure online platform.

Brantano, Ladbrokes, RTBF,
Barilla, Astra Zeneca, Unilever

It’s hard to find a more experienced team than ours. Our consultants have had the chance to
work on numerous complex web applications for major European companies across all kinds
of industries. We know how to make the most ergonomic and usable sites, and we are masters
of persuasive technical architecture.

Brussels Airlines, Beqom, Barilla,
AstraZeneca, EDA (European
Defence Agency), De Lijn,
Ladbrokes, Total, FIVB, AXA,
Education Above All, Deutsche
Bank, Electrabel, Federal Mogul,
Delhaize, BNP Paribas Fortis,
D’Ieteren, Starwood, Freeride
World Tour, Candriam, Bruxelles
Mobilité, Mons 2015, Loterie
Romande

Our passive methods (data collection, social media monitoring and desk research) give us a
sense of context which we use to do the very best research. Our qualitative methods include
focus groups, face to face interviews, ethnography, eye tracking, user testing, chats, blogs,
forums, and tracking online customer journeys. We combine these with quantitative surveys,
online, by telephone and via mobile applications.
We also meet your consumers in the flesh for real life feedback – or IRL, as we digital natives like to say – about their perceptions of your brand and service. We listen, interact and
reach a deep understanding of your customers to translate their needs and expectations
into strategies that you can then put into action.
By integrating the consumer at every turn, we make our research meaningful and give you the
best possible return on your investment. And our regular reports mean that these consumer
insights will enrich each stage of your digital transformation project.

We build your site or application’s architecture in three phases: we analyse your needs and
challenges, design your solution and then test it with actual users. We work in close collaboration with production teams of designers and developers, plus experts from Emakina / Perform
who gauge any obstacles and suggest improvements (our analytics service). All this is aimed at
increasing traffic to the site so that it draws in as many customers as possible (otherwise known
as search engine optimisation or SEO).
We help design digital experiences such as websites and applications by seeing through the
eyes of the intended users. This applies to our wireframes (representing the site’s skeletal
framework), tests, recommendations and optimisations, all of which will meet your objectives
and convince more visitors to become buyers. We always use the best practices to tailor experiences to the end user.

O U R S E R V I C E A N D W H AT W E O F F E R / P. 3 8
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EMAKINA / MEDIA

EMAKINA / DIRECT

Media strategy / Media planning / Media buying / ROI

Data driven marketing & CRM strategy / Marketing automation technology services

TV / Radio / Cinema / Press / Display / Viral & buzz marketing

Lead nurturing programs / Customer life cycle campaigns / e-newsletters

Advergaming / Native advertising / SEM

Database audit / Mining and management / Reporting & customer insights
Interactive & cross channel one-to-one communication

THE MESSAGE IS THE MEDIA

CLIENTS

MARKETING INTELLIGENCE

CLIENTS

Emakina / Media is a service provided by the Robert & Marien agency, an integrated part of
Emakina Group. The agency’s name is made up of the surnames of its two founders, Michel
Robert and Alain Marien, who have years of experience and truly engage with the needs of their
clients just like the best lawyers and doctors.

Unibet, Suzuki, AWEX, Vins
de Bordeaux, Partenamut,
Test-Achats, Kidibul, BIC,
Staessens, Peterman, SPW,
ERGO Life, Lierac, Actiris,
Triodos Bank, Bruxelles Mobilité,
Kapaza, Ricoh, Imperial,
IBSR, Club, Faro, Maxi Toys,
Therabel, Crelan, Delhaize Direct,
Rendez-vous.be, Fnac

Our extensive experience with major businesses in a variety of sectors means we can really help
our clients define the best customer relationship management (CRM) strategy and find the tools
to put it into action. We roll out these strategies from start to finish and offer workshops and
training to our clients so that they can then manage the tools themselves.

Audi, Škoda, Volkswagen, Seat,
SNCF, Thomas Cook, Federal
Mogul, Wolf Oil Corporation,
Unilever, Omnivit, Crelan,
Test-Achats, Brussels Airlines,
Dela, AXA, Crelan, Electrabel,
Samsung, UMP, Sunweb,
Suitsupply, Karl Lagerfeld,
Starwood, Orange, KBC, CM,
Peugeot, L’Oréal, Terre des
Hommes, Loterie romande,
Swissquote

We develop your media strategy and negotiate the purchase of advertising space. This includes all traditional media (national and international television, radio, poster campaigns, cinema, and printed press), plus the gamut of internet possibilities (including display advertising,
native advertising and using social networks).
We conduct pre-campaign testing to gauge potential audiences, as well as post-campaign analysis (both qualitative and financial). For these, we recommend our clients use external companies
to ensure the feedback is relevant, objective and independent.
Our customers are welcome to take part in our negotiations with the media, making sure we
achieve the best rates. We also use Real Time bidding (direct purchase of advertising space,
which means a lower entry price) via a platform developed by our partner, AdExpert.
We stay close to our customers and act transparently, while also making sure they get the most
out of their investment. To ensure neutrality in relation to media and guarantee our clients the
best service, we take no commissions from the media, but are solely paid by our clients, the
advertisers.

We analyse and improve customer data to draw out insights that lead to action. We offer customised marketing programs, across multiple channels, and through every ‘touch point’ of the
customer journey to win customers who will be brand loyal. This might include, for instance,
multi-channel outbound marketing, personalised newsletters and using tools such as Adobe
Campaign and Selligent.
We focus upon building a strong relationship between your brand and the end user, and this
means you will end up with a strategy that gives you an excellent, long-term return on investment. Thanks to our customer analysis and feedback, we continue to evaluate and adapt our
techniques to give you the best possible results.

O U R S E R V I C E A N D W H AT W E O F F E R / P. 4 0
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EMAKINA / PERFORM

EMAKINA / SOCIAL

KPI workshops / Improving conversion rates / Dashboarding / Link building

Social media strategy & brand DNA / Content strategy & tone of voice

Dynamic re-marketing & re-targeting / SEA / SEO / A/B & multivariate testing

Engagement strategy / Social media advertising / Social media monitoring

Keywords research / Funnel tracking / Google adwords / Engine optimisation

Community & conversation management / Gamification / Storytelling

Affiliate marketing / Content & inbound marketing (online reputation management)

Social customer relationship management

CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT

CLIENTS

SOCIAL BY DESIGN: THE POWER OF SHARED EXPERIENCE

CLIENTS

“If you cannot measure it, you cannot improve it,” (attributed to 19th-century physician Lord
Kelvin).

D’Ieteren Auto, Electabel,
Federal Mogul, Samsung,
European Union, BNP Paribas
Fortis, Star wood Hotels,
Fun, Ethias, Makro Cash &
Carry, Ergo, Swiss Education
Group, Institute for Business
Development, Vlerick Business
School, 2dehands, Rabobank,
SD Worx, OZ (Onafhankelijk
Ziekenfonds), Brussels Airlines,
Star woord Hotels, Terre
Des Hommes, Unilever, De
Persgroep, Peugeot, Citroën,
Swiss Education Group, SGS

Nowadays, your consumers will often share their experiences on social networks. In return, they
expect to have a real relationship with your brand, 24/7, and want your communication to be
transparent, genuine and useful.

Volkswagen, Škoda, My Way,
Bonduelle, Estée Lauder, eCab,
Infobéton, Lindemans, Omnivit,
BIC, Barilla, NATO, Dela, L’Oréal,
Orange

Emakina / Perform is a team of about fifteen consultants with a wealth of experience in web
marketing, SEO, social media analytics and optimising conversion rates (turning visitors into buyers).
We measure your performance online (for example, relevant visits, bounce rate, sales, community management, and social marketing) via successful tools such as Adobe Analytics, Google
Analytics and Piwik, or even – when needed – creating our own specific analysis tools.
We set up ‘dashboards’ that integrate data from the web, social networks, ad management platforms and your website database to give you a real-time, graphical map of your key performance
indicators (KPIs) on a web interface.
We compare these results with your goals and make recommendations to improve your ROI.
The results of our work are clearly evident in the long term, and the service we offer is that of a
partner rather than a consultant for a single project. We guarantee a reliable, long-term, end-toend service.

Emakina / Social is a partner that helps your brand achieve a permanent and constructive level
of response on social networks. We offer you strategic, creative and ‘conversational’ support,
to manage your social presence, monitor and guide conversations, and stimulate interactions
with your customers.
We improve your reputation and your image on social media through a social and digital strategy that translates your company values into an engaging brand experience, consistent with your
marketing and communication.
We create appealing, fun content for your customers, to encourage them to talk to you. We
create and optimise an entire ecosystem – based on the latest marketing innovations – to match
the expectation and behaviours of your consumers in a Web that is increasingly about relationships.
It is impossible to ignore social media today: now they make up a formidable targeting tool for
your display campaigns. We can help you buy advertising space in these media. And, finally, we
can help you do all this by yourself, thanks to our training and coaching programmes.

O U R S E R V I C E A N D W H AT W E O F F E R / P. 4 2
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EMAKINA / MOTION

EMAKINA / OPERATIONS

Creation (strategy analysis, concept, scenario, storyboard) / Preproduction (casting,

Technical validation / Hosting solutions / Testing & monitoring 24/7

location, HMC,…) / Studio & on-site shooting / Postproduction (editing, composition,

Service Level Agreement (SLA) / Streaming solutions

graphic design, sound design) / New media / 360° interactive videos
Webisodes / WebTV / Podcasting

VERY FAST FORWARD

CLIENTS

FIVE STAR ACCOMMODATION

CLIENTS

Emakina / Motion is your One Stop Shop for audiovisual and radio production, a partner that
helps you exploit the emotive and informative potential of audiovisual media and play with
their interactive possibilities.

ING, Fortis, Delhaize, Schweppes,
Kodak, European Commission,
European Council, European
Environment Agency, Actiris,
Ladbrokes, SPF Économie,
Bekaert, Jaeger LeCoultre, FIVB

Emakina / Operations is a single point of contact that develops and maintains your infrastructure and tracks your applications with a guaranteed 24/7 service.

SNCF, Total, Degroof, Delta
Lloyd, Federal Mogul, Starwood,
Barilla, Audi, Volkswagen, Seat,
Škoda, Electrabel, KPN Base,
bpost, Groupe Bruxelles Lambert, IP Plurimedia, BNP Paribas
Fortis, Deutsche Bank, Digipolis,
SD Worx, Dela, Fanuc Robotics,
Capsugel, International Post
Corporation, Gates Europe,
OZ, FIVB, Shurgard, Motrac,
Bekaert, Girard-Perregaux, Oris,
Gerifonds, ISU, Freeride World
Tour, Caspita, Reuge

We are a team of more than twenty people: producers, directors, editors, sound engineers, composers, motion designers and 3D specialists. All of this talent is housed in its own integrated studio
(offering recording, post-production and shooting facilities) at the Emakina site.
First, we undertake a strategic and creative analysis of what your project requires in terms of
the audiovisual style, format, technique, tone of voice, and form of storytelling. Then we make
up a team with the right skillset to design and produce your audiovisual content, going from
pre-production (where we have four dedicated producers) to post-production, where we have
an editing studio to add animation, motion design, 3D elements, and music, which we can compose and record ourselves.

TECHNOLOGICAL INNOVATION AND FLEXIBILITY
We create audiovisual experiences that generate a buzz through their style and their substance: we bring stories to brands, and brands to stories. Our clients use our work for external
or internal communication projects (like corporate or B2B communication), radio ads, interactive videos, television ads and podcasting.
We offer video content for innovative technical solutions and completely novel interactive experiences – virtual reality, 360° videos and streaming, for instance – to make your brand truly
stand out from the competition.

We offer professional hosting services and application support for websites, web applications
and databases, including technical validation, managing launches, plus testing and monitoring
all elements from infrastructure to applications.
We use two data centres and cloud-based storage (Amazon AWS and Microsoft Azure) to
minimize the risk of service interruption.
We pledge that your service will be available 99.5% to 99.9% of the time. We sign a contract
with you guaranteeing the quality of our service (SLA), quick reaction time, flexibility and an
extraordinary experience. We take full responsibility for our hosting solutions.

A G E N C I E S / P. 4 4
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CHAPTER 3
AGENCIES
Emakina Group is an independent network of agencies in five different countries, which also serves
customers around the world through its international partners.
Emakina Group

P. 47

Helping businesses succeed in their
digital transformation

P. 48

Partners

P. 52
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Ever since Emakina’s initial public offering
(IPO) on the Alternext market in July 2006,
we have developed across Europe to
become a group of agencies based in 11
cities and serving customers worldwide.

Our international presence means that we can truly
understand our customers, whatever their strategy
and wherever they are based, and it also means we
can cross-fertilize skills and experience across our
different Emakina services.
Today, the network consists of five agencies:
•

•
•
•
•

Emakina present in five countries:
•
Emakina.BE, based in Brussels, Belgium
Emakina.CH, based in Geneva and Lausanne,
•
Switzerland
•
Emakina.FR, based in Paris and Limoges,
France
•
Emakina.NL, based in Rotterdam and
Amsterdam, The Netherlands
•
Emakina.TR, based in Izmir, Turkey
The Reference, based in Ghent, Belgium
Design is Dead, based in Antwerp, Belgium
Your Agency, based in Waterloo, Belgium
Robert & Marien, also based in Brussels, Belgium

This strategic alliance of creativity, technology and
expertise makes the Emakina Group one of the five
largest groups of independent digital agencies in Europe.

A G E N C I E S / P. 4 8
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Emakina.BE, based in Brussels, is the original Emakina
agency, and was born from a merger of Ex Machina and
Emalaya in 2001. Brice Le Blévennec is founder and managing director. Its main clients are Electrabel, D’Ieteren,
Starwood, Federal Mogul, Deutsche Bank, AstraZeneca,
Education Above All, BNP Paribas Fortis, SNCF, AXA, Ergo
and bpost.

Emakina.FR, the French agency based in Paris and Limoges,
has Manuel Diaz as its president. Its main clients include
Karl Lagerfeld, Orange, Bic, L’Oreal, Nike, i24news, Solaris,
Unilever, Samsung Europe, IWC and SNCF.

Emakina.CH, the Swiss operation based in Geneva and
Lausanne, dates back to the 2012 acquisition of Label.CH.
Its managing partner is Arnaud Grobet and its main
clients include FIVB, Jaeger LeCoultre, Société Générale
de Surveillance, Swissquote Bank, Société de la Loterie
Romande, Citroën Suisse and Orange Communications.

Brussels
Paris
Limoges
Geneva
Lausanne
Amsterdam
Rotterdam
Izmir

The Internet plays a massive role in the way our
society is evolving. It changes the way we interact,
has an impact on global and local economies, helps
spread democracy, has digitised the media and has
changed the communication landscape forever.
In this Digital Age, consumers have taken the reins
of power, with influence that they have never had
before: they take brands as their own, and can make
or unmake them. So in the face of this, brands need
to turn to a new type of marketing agency. Agencies
that understand this world were born with the Web,

so they are ‘digital natives’, fluent in its new language
and type of thinking.
Emakina is a full service agency that has grown as
the Internet has done. We constantly adapt our
services to the latest in technology, we employ
only the most talented people, and feed them
on stimulating challenges. We fight alongside our
clients and their brands to create real connections
with today’s consumers.

Emakina.NL, based in Rotterdam and Amsterdam, joined
the group with the acquisition of SunTzu in 2007 and
Relephant in 2013. The Dutch agency is led by Geert Rietbergen and among its main clients are Unilever, Lola &
Liza, Rituals, Yves Rocher, Auping, Esprit, Marlies Dekkers,
De Persgroep, Bonduelle and Suitsupply.

Emakina.TR, based in Izmir at the Turkish crossroads of
Europe and the Middle East, joined our family in 2013
when Emakina acquired Relephant. Its main clients are:
Yeniçarşım/Hepsiburada, Hürriyet Oto, Electroworld/
Bimeks, Hurriyet, Kliksa, Teknosa, Markafoni, De Bijenkorf,
Suitsupply, Rituals, Europcar and Jack & Jones.
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The Reference (Ghent), founded in 1993, was the first Belgian web agency and one of
the European pioneers in its field. From the word go, the agency combined technology
and marketing to help its clients do their jobs better. Today, The Reference is a leading
multi-channel agency that employs more than 100 highly qualified people.
The Ghent-based agency is unique because of its results-oriented approach, something
that is summed up in its motto: it’s more than digital; it’s your business. The Reference takes
its clients through a journey of strategic transformation to meet their objectives, thanks to
its perfectly integrated areas of expertise: brand design, website building, e-commerce,
marketing automation, marketing on search engines, analysis, mobile and tablets, and
custom applications (to name just a few).
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Your Agency (Waterloo). Thinking about customer marketing rather than product marketing,
our daily bread and butter is establishing a dialogue between brands and their consumers.
Your Agency is rooted in digital, print, and on-the-ground activation projects. We have a
strong reputation in brand activation, creating brand loyalty and the advanced use of CRM
tools. The modern consumer is assailed by offers on every side. The number of contact
points between brands and consumers is exploding. So we create constant interactions to
establish a new value chain in relationships between consumers and brands, interchannel
relations that are always ready-to-go, on demand. We add quality content and services that
always help our clients do better. By making brands service their consumers, we develop
interactions that guide and strengthen consumer choices.

The Reference – It’s more than digital; it’s your business.

Design is Dead (Antwerp) is a well-established name in the field of the Web and design.
In recent years, the company has evolved from a small band of talents to a top full service
agency with a reputation for digital storytelling and innovative creations. Design is Dead is
known for a strong aesthetic approach that creates an emotional bond between brands
and their customers. Clients always leave Design is Dead with a campaign or project that
will feed their vision and build their brand position. The Design is Dead signature is evident
in every project, whether it is to develop a brand identity, strategy for social media, revolutionary animated film, website or a full service, 360° campaign with a double twisting
somersault for good measure!

Robert & Marien (Brussels) is an independent media agency offering a comprehensive
range of services. Our mission: to create media strategies, come up with smart tactics
and negotiate advertising space online and offline.
Our strengths: transparency, experience and a close relationship with our clients.
Robert & Marien, Emakina’s media branch, is the first integrated media agency that can
manage every aspect of advertising. It aims to enable advertisers to work in a complete
media strategy from the very start of an ad campaign, and combine this with other elements
that contribute to the overall campaign success. This approach is based on three tenets:
financial transparency, expertise and close involvement with our customers. If new media
are integrated from the start, the advertising scope reaches ever further, from television
to poster campaigns, cinema, press and radio. Robert & Marien operates in all European
countries, through the Icom Media network.

A G E N C I E S / P. 5 2
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PARTNERS
Emakina Group and its international partners want to be the
go-to agencies for a world that has changed forever. With our
partners, we create consistent brand experiences that exploit
the possibilities of digital to the full, on an international scale.
Brands are increasingly looking for marketing solutions that go
beyond national borders. To be effective, international strategic
projects must be linked with local action. Organisations must
position themselves more aggressively, on communication
platforms aimed at specific markets, but also on a continental
or global scale.
This is why Emakina Group joins forces with international
groups who share our vision, whether they work in Europe,
the US or Asia. Together these partners offer brands a common and robust set of methods to beam their digital strategy
across borders.
These partners are recognised leaders in the field of digital
marketing. They have all the skills to design and create extraordinary brand experiences, spark conversations, manage
communities, inform clients, influence decision makers and
escalate online sales.

Digital Jungle

SinnerSchrader

Dempsey

Metia Group

Piramit

Domino

Beijing, Shanghai, Sydney and Auckland.
Asia’s go-to agency for influential social
marketing was the first to sign a partnership
agreement with Emakina Group. Where
others are limited to generic digital solutions, this agency has the level of Asian
expertise to apply ideas about content
marketing and develop engaging social
media programmes and campaigns in a
relevant way.

Frankfurt, Munich, Prague, Berlin and
Hannover. This stand-out full service
digital agency is one of the European
market leaders, and also shares its
knowledge and vision with Emakina.
It has 400 employees spread between
five bases in Germany and one in the
Czech Republic. Together they design
and develop intelligent digital strategies
for their clients, creating platforms and
applications that forge close links between consumers and brands.

Stockholm. Dempsey, the Swedish
expert digital marketing agency joined
Emakina’s network as its Scandinavian
partner. The agency was founded in 2010
and is one of the rising digital agencies
in the Nordic countries. It has a strong
management team, highly-developed
skillset, and 15 experts who come up
with leading creative solutions for local
and international clients.

London, Singapore, Seattle, Austin (Texas).
Another name that is well-known in
international spheres, Metia Group has
more than 200 experts and works across
three continents. This London-grown
agency is truly at the forefront of digital
marketing. Its creative campaigns radiate
beyond geographic borders; they are
deployed systematically and accurately
gauged. Its marketing services include
designing and developing websites and
mobile applications, creating social media
programmes, analysis, public relations
and e-mail marketing.

Istanbul. Piramit is one of the top five
independent advertising agencies in Turkey. Thanks to the new collaboration with
Emakina, our customers now have access
to a top Turkish consultant to offer strategic
and local communication support in this
changing market.

Turin, Venice. The newest member of our
constantly-growing network is Domino,
an Italian interactive digital agency – and
‘proud to be so’ – with offices in Turin and
Venice. It has valuable experience in digital
marketing and strategy development, plus
that dash of Italian flair and know-how
to add to Emakina’s international service.

F I N A N C I A L I N F O R M AT I O N / P. 5 4
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CHAPTER 4
FINANCIAL
INFORMATION
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE,
MANAGEMENT AND CONTROLS
This section focuses on Emakina Group’s implementation of good governance rules in 2014, following the recommendations of the Belgian Corporate
Governance Code. It is important to remember that since Emakina Group
is a company listed on the Brussels Alternext (an unregulated market), it
is not actually subject to the code, because it is not a ‘listed’ company as
defined in the Company Code (Code des societies, Art. 4).
The management of Emakina voluntarily decided to adopt a Corporate
Governance Charter in 2006 (last modified on 19 March 2015). This is largely
inspired by the provisions of the Belgian Corporate Governance Code, but
does not meet all obligations for companies listed on a regulated market.

Emakina Group statutes and shareholding

P. 58

Structure of Emakina GroupP. 60
Corporate governance charter

P. 61

Board of directors

P. 62

• Report on activities

P. 62

Board of directors’ committees

P. 68

• General

P. 68

• Audit committee 

P. 68

• Nomination and remuneration committee

P. 68

Executive committee

P. 69

• General

P. 69

• Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Managing Director

P. 69

• Composition of the executive committee

P. 69

Compensation of directors and the executive committee

P. 69

• Non-executive directors

P. 69

• Executive directors (executive committee)

P. 69

Shares held by non-executive directors and members of the
executive committee

P. 70

• Shares held by the non-executive directors

P. 70

• Shares held by members of the executive committee

P. 70

The auditor

P. 71

Conflicts of interest among directors, operations and executive
committee members with affiliates

P. 71

Relationships with affiliates

P. 72

Relationships with significant shareholders

P. 72

Compliance with legislation on insider dealing and market
manipulation (market abuse)

P. 73

Main features of the company’s internal control systems during
the process of preparing financial information

P. 73

57

F I N A N C I A L I N F O R M AT I O N / P. 5 8

59

EMAKINA GROUP STATUTES
AND SHAREHOLDING
Emakina Group is a public limited company under Belgian
law, with its registered office at 64A rue Middelbourg, 1170
Brussels, Belgium. Its statutes (the most recent dated 15 July
2013) are available on its website at the following address:
www.emakina.com, in the ‘financial’ section. Since 14 July
2006, the shareholding of Emakina Group has been listed on

SHAREHOLDERS
Mr P. Gatz

the Alternext Brussels, organised by Euronext. On 31 December
2014, the capital of Emakina Group amounted to €9,229,661.47.
This is made up of 3,844,061 shares, corresponding to the total
voting rights (or ‘denominator’) and is broken down as follows:

SHARES

%

1,139,030

Two4Two

29.631

629,326

Mr D. Steisel

16.371

609,718

Mr B. Le Blévennec

15.861

609,718

15.861

Others

382,481

9.950

Tarraco Holding

296,052

7.702

Mr J. Deprez

120,320

3.130

Mediadreams

44,720

1.163

Emakina Group

12,696

0.330

3,844,061

100

TOTAL

The significant interest held by Mr Pierre Gatz was the subject of
a transparency declaration on 13 December 2010, in accordance
with legislation (Royal Decree of 14 December 2006 for the Alternext market).
On 31 December 2014, Emakina Group held a balance of
12,696 of its own shares from a buyback plan for 35,000 ‘OTC’
(off-exchange traded) shares which occurred in June 2014. This

was intended to provide equity remuneration for liabilities relating
to former share holders of certain subsidiaries. The balance was
partially allocated in July 2014.
In accordance with obligations related to transparency (Article 15
of the law of 2 May 2007), the capital and the number of securities conferring the right to vote were published on 17 July 2013,
following the capital increase made on 15 July 2013.

The history of capital in the last five financial years is summarised below:

DATE OF
INCREASE

NATURE

TYPE

INCREASE
(EUR)

N° OF
SHARES
CREATED

SHARE
PREMIUM
(EUR)

AUTHORISED
CAPITAL
(EUR)

TOTAL N°
OF SHARES

14 July
2009

Contribution
in kind

Authorised
share capital

89,257.96

37,175

245,317.04

8,395,670.14

3,496,708

1 July
2010

Contribution
in kind

Authorised
share capital

120,593.68

50,226

376,643.72

8,516,263.82

3,546,934

1 July
2010

Contribution
in kind

Authorised
share capital

600,099.20

249,935

1,874,257.30

9,116,363.02

3,796,869

15 July
2011

Contribution
in kind

Authorised
share capital

28,562.55

11,896

89,207.45

9,144,925.57

3,808,765

15 July
2011

Contribution
in kind

Authorised
share capital

59,963.10

24,974

172,044.90

9,204,888.67

3,833,739

15 July
2013

Contribution
in kind

Authorised
share capital

102,187.80

10,322

77,415.00

9,229,661.47

3,844,061

Following stock-option plans in 2010 and 2011, available to members of staff, consultants and directors of the company or its
subsidiaries, 97,720 warrants were issued on the following conditions:

N° OF WARRANTS

STRIKE PRICE

EXERCISING PERIOD

Stock-option plan 2010

59,280

8.09

May 2014 and May 2015

Stock-option plan 2011

38,440

7.49

May 2015 and May 2016

For information purposes, the market capitalisation of Emakina Group totalled €30,752,488 on 31 December 2014.
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STRUCTURE
OF EMAKINA GROUP
EMAKINA GROUP
AMS TERDAM

On 31 December 2014, Emakina Group consisted of 12 legally
separate entities, whose holdings are described below:

ROT TERDAM
GHENT
BRUSSEL S
WAT E R LO O

ANT WERP

Emakina.BE SA

Held at 100 %

Emakina.CH SA

Held at 64%

Emakina.FR SA

Held at 100 %

PA R I S

G E N E VA
LIMOGES

Held at 100% by Emakina.FR

TOY AGENCY SARL

Emakina BV*

Held at 54,5%
EMAKINA BILGISAYAR YAZILIM LTD.
ŞTI. (EMAKINA TURKEY LTD)

EMAKINA / INSIGHTS SPRL

Held at 100 %

The Reference NV

Held at 100 %

Design is Dead BVBA

Held at 100 %

Your Agency SA

Held at 100 %

Robert & Marien SPRL

Held at 25%

All subsidiaries are consolidated using a global integration
method, recognising minority interests, with the exception of
the company Robert & Marien, whose shareholding is classified
as ‘other investments’ (see subsequently).

Held at 100% by Emakina BV

Note that on 1 January 2015, Emakina.FR took over Toy Agency.
Following this merger, the group was made up of 11 entities
rather than the 12 that existed at the end of 2014.

IZMIR

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CHARTER

During the 2014 financial year, Emakina Group’s scope of consolidation changed as follows:
•

the minority stake in the company Yabolka EOOD was
sold in late 2014;

•

the minority interest in Robert & Marien was reclassified
‘other investments’, while it was consolidated according
to the equity method on 31 December 2013;

•

the interest held by Emakina Group in Emakina.CH grew
from 52% to 64% on 1 May 2014 following the buyback
of shares from a former shareholder;

•

Emakina.EU and Emakina Media were merged into the
Emakina.BE accounts on 1 January 2014;

•

the Dutch entities were merged into a single entity called
Emakina.NL, holding 100% of the Turkish firm, Emakina.TR;

•

the company Emakina / Insights was established on 1 July
2014 and is 100% owned by Emakina Group;

•

Media Merge and Emakina.UK companies were liquidated
at the end of 2014;

•

100% of the company Toy Agency was acquired by Emakina.FR
on 1 July 2014.

*Emakina BV’s commercial name is Emakina.NL.

In 2006, Emakina Group’s board of directors decided to adopt
a voluntary corporate governance charter, largely inspired by
the provisions of the Belgian code of corporate governance,
but which does not fulfil all of its obligations for listed firms
on a regulated market.
So, the company has adopted an appropriate charter with the
rationale of ‘comply or explain’.

The charter is available at www.emakina.com under the
‘financial’ section and can be obtained free of charge at the
company’s registered office.
This charter is regularly updated. The board made its most
recent changes on 19 March 2015.
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BOARD OF
DIRECTORS
REPORT ON ACTIVITIES

•

monitoring risk management policy;

The board of directors met four times in 2014. They
discussed and resolved the following issues:

•

monitoring the integration of subsidiaries and implementing ERP ‘Navision Dynamics’ within the group;

•

approval of the annual accounts and interim financial
statements;

•

convening the General Meeting of shareholders.

•

approval of press releases;

•

approval of budgets;

•

development strategy: review and approval of acquisition records, strategic and commercial partnerships;

•

monitoring aspects of cash and working capital needs;

•

monitoring the work of the audit, nomination and remuneration committees;

•

analysis of the group’s performance for the year on
the basis of financial, commercial and operational ‘key
performance indicators’;

•

appointments and reappointments of directors;

THOSE PRESENT, AND MEETING RATE ATTENDANCE
•

President: Denis Steisel 4/4;

•

Executive members: John Deprez 4/4, Karim Chouikri
4/4, Pierre Gatz 4/4; Brice Le Blévennec 4/4;

•

Non-executive members: Denis Steisel 4/4, François
Gillet 4/4, VAPM Consulting represented by Pierre-Michel
Cattoir 4/4, Daisy Foquet 4/4, Anne Pinchart 4/4.

BRICE LE BLÉVENNEC

The board of directors is composed of nine members who all, in the course of their duties, have elected their domicile at the
company’s registered office.

ADMINISTRATORS

EXECUTIVE

NON-EXECUTIVE

INDEPENDENT

DATE OF END OF TERM

Mr Brice Le Blévennec has been a director of the company
since 2001. In 2006, he became Chief Visionary Officer of
Emakina Group and was elected Chairman of the Board of
Directors. In 2012, he succeeded Denis Steisel as managing
director of Emakina.BE. In January 2014, he was appointed
joint CEO in charge of Emakina Group, with Mr. Karim Chouikri.
In 1991 he founded Ex Machina, a company working in desktop
graphics and multimedia production. He won many projects
and built on this success, then in 1998 created the companies
Ex Machina Graphic Design (a graphic design studio) and Ex
Machina Interactive Architects (a web agency, which would
merge with Emalaya in 2001). In 1999, he co-founded NetBusiness (now ContactOffice-Group), which develops the
groupware contactoffice.com.

Mr D. Steisel

General meeting 2018

Mr B. Le Blévennec

General meeting 2018

Mr K. Chouikri

General meeting 2017

Mr J. Deprez

General meeting 2018

Mr P. Gatz

General meeting 2017

Mr F. Gillet

General meeting 2017

As a specialist in new technologies, he is regularly invited to
speak at seminars, congresses and conferences in Belgium
and abroad.

VAPM Consulting,
represented by Mr P-M.
Cattoir

General meeting 2017

Mr Le Blévennec is or has been a director or manager at the
following companies in the past five years:

Mrs A. Pinchart

General meeting 2018

Emakina Group*, ContactOffice Group*, Ex Machina Television*,
Ex Tempore, Emakina.BE*, Emakina.FR, Emakina / Media, Ex
Cathedra, Tunz.com, Ex Cursus*, Emakina.CH*, Your Agency,
Emakina.NL*.

Mrs D. Foquet

General meeting 2018

* current positions

For 12 years Brice Le Blévennec created and hosted radio
and television programmes, including CyberCafe21 (Radio21)
CyberCafe 2.0 (RTBF La Deux) NetBusinessNews (BFM), Single
(Pure FM) and She and Him (Pure FM). In 2007, he co-founded
tunz.com, a company specialising in mobile payments.
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KARIM CHOUIKRI

Mr Karim Chouikri has been a director of the company since
March 2006.

JOHN DEPREZ
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PIERRE GATZ

Mr John Deprez has been on the company’s board of directors
since 2001.

Mr Pierre Gatz has been a director of the company since April
2009.

He is a sales specialist (École de Commerce Solvay, 1994). As An industrial engineer by training, and graduate in management,
a shareholder, director or consultant, he has helped develop Mr Deprez joined Emakina in May 2001 as an executive manager.
various companies involved in new technology, internet
He is responsible for the activities and projects of the subsidiaries
business, media and marketing.
Design is Dead and The Reference, as well as more technical
Since 2013, he has been academic director of the EMM/ projects in the group.
CEPAC Solvay Brussels School.
Mr Deprez has led important projects for key clients such
At the beginning of January 2014, he was appointed joint as BNP Paribas Fortis, Brussels Airlines, Delta Lloyd Life, KPN
CEO of Emakina Group with Mr Brice Le Blévennec, replac- Belgium Group, and BRADY Corporation as project manager
ing Mr Denis Steisel, who became chairman of the board or as technology and development manager in the group.
of directors.
Before joining Emakina, he worked at Alcatel and The Reference.
He is or has been a director of the following companies in the
Mr Deprez is or has been a director or manager of the followpast 5 years: Emakina Group*, Mediadreams*, Netholding*,
ing companies in the last five years: Emakina Group*, AntNetcapital, B.C.I.* and Property Dreams*.
werp CD Center*, ACDC Holding, Emakina.BE*, Emakina.EU,
The Reference*, Emakina.NL, Design is Dead*, ACDC*, Nvidea.

Between 1986 and 2004, Mr Pierre Gatz was a director and
partner at Bureau van Dijk Electronic Publishing, an electronic
publishing company that he co-founded. He developed several
innovative technologies, including search engines for CD-Rom
and the internet. He also built commercial activities in Europe
and the United States.
In 2004 and 2005, Mr Pierre Gatz worked as a technology consultant for various private equity firms in London and New York.
From July 2005 to June 2010, Mr Pierre Gatz was Chief Technology Officer at Truvo and editor of the Pages d‘Or and Pages
Blanches (telephone directories) in Belgium, Ireland, Portugal,
Romania, South Africa and Puerto Rico.
Mr Pierre Gatz is or has been a director or manager at the
following companies in the last five years: Emakina Group*,
Emakina.CH*, Emakina.NL*, Your Agency*.

DENIS STEISEL

Mr Denis Steisel has been a director of the company since 2000.
He graduated from the Catholic University of Leuven in Economic Science. He began his career as an SAP specialist, worked
as Business Unit Manager at Econocom, then co-founded
Expert Finance Consulting before devoting himself to the
internet and e-commerce.
In 1998, he founded Make it Happen, known since 1999 as
Emalaya and today as Emakina.BE.
Between 2001 and the end of 2013, Mr Steisel was CEO of
the company, and one of the people responsible for business
development within the Emakina Group.
From the 1st January 2014, Mr Denis Steisel has been a
non-executive chairman of Emakina Group’s board of directors.
He is also a director of the ‘Entrepreneurs’ Network Brussels’
(Réseau Entreprendre Bruxelles), which supports entrepreneurialism.
Denis Steisel is or has been a director of the following
companies: Emakina Group*, Emakina.BE, Design is Dead,
Emakina.NL, Emakina.FR, Your Agency, The Reference.

* current positions

* current positions

F I N A N C I A L I N F O R M AT I O N / P. 6 6

FRANÇOIS GILLET

DAISY FOQUET
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PIERRE-MICHEL CATTOIR

ANNE PINCHART

Mr François Gillet has been a director of the company since
2006.

Mrs Daisy Foquet has been a director of Emakina since March
2011.

Mr Pierre-Michel Cattoir has been an independent director of
the company since May 2009.

Mrs Anne Pinchart has been a director of the company since
March 2011.

He graduated in 1983 with a degree in commercial engineering
and management. The following year joined the ‘Union Minière’,
where he was deputy Chief Financial Officer, responsible for
financial aspects of acquisitions, strategic plans and specific
projects.

She graduated from l’École de Commerce, Solvay in 1994
with a commercial engineering business degree and began
her career at Banque Indosuez in Brussels. In 1996, she joined
JP Morgan Investment Management in London.

He trained as a civil engineer in applied mathematics at the
Catholic University of Leuven and then took an MBA from
Cornell University in New York.

She has a degree in commercial and consular sciences (ICHEC
1986). Since September 2008, she has been a lecturer in
management, financial management and risk management at
the Haute École EPHEC in Brussels. At the same time, she has
been working as an independent consultant in credit risk and
senior management. In June 2012, she obtained a degree as an
Executive Master in Business Coaching; using this knowledge,
she now regularly takes part in training sessions for executives
and managers of companies.

In 1988 he joined the financial holding company Sofina,
where he is currently Chief Investment Officer and part of the
management group. There, he is responsible for monitoring
and acting as director for several investments, including Colruyt, Luxempart, and Deceuninck. He is also responsible for
private equity activities in Benelux, tracking Sofindev, Bencis
and Waterland funds, as president, director or a member of
shareholder committees. He is a member of several audit,
nomination and remuneration committees.
In addition to his management training at the IAG, during
which he participated in an exchange programme with the
University of Western Ontario (Canada), he took the Cepac
(ULB) programme and various management programmes at
INSEAD. He studied tax at the École de Commerce Saint Louis.

Mrs Daisy Foquet spent the following 12 years in financial management in London as an analyst covering companies in the
consumer sector. Mrs Foquet then worked for Dresdner RCM,
Putnam Investment Management and Generation Investment
Management, a management company established by Al Gore,
the former US vice president, which looks at financial analysis
and sustainable development issues.
In 2008, Mrs Foquet joined Nestlé in Vevey (Switzerland) as
director of financial communications.
In 2010, she moved to Boston. Since then, she has offered
local start-ups her services in constructing financial models
and formalising budgets and reporting. In 2014, she returned
to London, where she continues to offer her services to local
and foreign start-ups.

He has extensive international experience of implementing
technology and media projects.
From 1988 to 1996, Mr Pierre-Michel Cattoir had various roles
in merchant banking at Banque Bruxelles Lambert, spending
several years abroad in Paris and Sydney.
He then joined McKinsey & Company in Brussels. For four years,
he has worked on various projects in Benelux as a consultant
and project manager.
In December 2000, Mr Pierre-Michel Cattoir joined the Brussels office of Egon Zehnder International, which assesses and
recruits business leaders. He has been a partner there since
2005 and specialises in technology, communications, media
and energy.

Mrs Anne Pinchart has extensive experience in banking, especially in the area of risk management. She began her career
at Citibank Belgium SA in 1988 as a junior credit officer. After
2 years at Citibank Luxembourg, she worked in various credit
and risk roles.
In 1995, she was appointed credit director for Citibank Belgium
and France, and is a member of its executive committee.
In 2004, she became member of the board of directors of
Citibank SA, managing risk for the entire bank in her role as
country risk manager.
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BOARD OF
DIRECTORS’ COMMITTEES

EXECUTIVE
COMMITTEE

GENERAL

COMPOSITION AND RATE OF MEETING ATTENDANCE:

GENERAL

The board of directors of Emakina Group creates specialised
committees to help its work. Committees are only advisory
bodies and powers of decision-making remain the collective
responsibility of the board of directors.

Chair; Mr François Gillet 4/4

The board of directors has appointed a managing director
who is assisted by the executive directors: together, they form
the executive committee. The regulation of its procedures is
decided by the board of directors. The executive committee is
not a management committee within the meaning of Article
524b of the Companies’ Code.

In 2006, the board had three special committees, choosing
members from within the board: an audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee.
On 18 March 2008, the board of directors decided (as permitted by its statutes) to merge the remuneration and nomination
committees.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The audit committee’s role is to assist the board of directors
in upholding the financial integrity of the company, overseeing financial reporting, internal and external auditing, internal
controls and financial relationships between the company
and its shareholders.
Members of this committee have extensive powers of investigation, identical to the legal powers of the auditor.
During 2014, the audit committee met four times and worked on:

Members: Mrs Anne Pinchart 4/4, Mrs Daisy Foquet 4/4.
The joint-CEO Mr Karim Chouikri and CFO Mr Frédéric Desonnay attended all four committee meetings in 2014 as guests.
The Audit Committee consists of three members who are
all non-executive directors and the majority of whom are
independent.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE
The nomination and remuneration committee is formed from
the board of directors and is responsible for:
•

making recommendations on the appointment of directors;

•

ensuring that appointments and re-elections are organised
objectively and professionally;

•

making recommendations on individual remuneration for
executives, including bonuses and long-term incentives
(such as stock-options);

•

issuing recommendations on human resources and employee compensation policies;

•

analysis of the annual accounts and consolidated financial
statements, and auditor’s report;

•

analysis of interim financial statements;

During 2014, there was one meeting of the nomination and
remuneration committee, which discussed the following topics:

•

discussion of audit findings with the auditor;

•

appointment of chairman of the board;

•

review of press releases;

•

replacing the CEO;

•

internal financial and operational control and risk management through the analysis of ‘key performance indicators’,
such as a specific project by EY on risk management;

•

remuneration policy for executive directors;

•

remuneration policy for staff;

•

monitoring the formalisation and adherence to internal
procedures for financial closures and financial reporting;

•

human resources policy.

•

following up on the advice and recommendations of the
external auditor;

•

cash management and optimisation of working capital
needs;

•

monitoring the implementation of the Dynamics Navision
2009 ERP project in the group (in Switzerland) and the
implementation of ‘HRWeb’ software for Belgium;

•

monitoring the rationalisation of the number of structures
in the group;

•

monitoring the valuation of investments in subsidiaries.

COMPOSITION AND RATE OF MEETING ATTENDANCE:
Members: VAPM Consulting represented by Mr Pierre-Michel
Cattoir 1/1, Mrs Daisy Foquet 1/1, Mrs Anne Pinchart 1/1.
The nomination and remuneration committee consists of three
members who are all non-executive, independent directors.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) AND
MANAGING DIRECTOR

COMPOSITION OF THE EXECUTIVE
COMMITTEE
The executive committee, set up by the board, is responsible
for the management of group activities in terms of overall
policy as defined by the board of directors.
It has decision-making powers and the authority to represent
the company in relationships with staff, customers, other credit
institutions, the social and economic environment and the
authorities. It also has decision-making and representation
powers in dealing with subsidiaries.
•

On 31 December 2014, the executive committee was
composed of five members:

•

Mr Brice Le Blévennec
(CEO and Chief Visionary Officer);

•

Mr Karim Chouikri
(Chief Executive Officer);

•

From 1 January 2014, the role of CEO has been given to Mr
Brice Le Blévennec and Mr Karim Chouikri.

Mr John Deprez
(Chief Technology Officer);

•

The CEO leads and supervises different central departments
and units of the Emakina Group and reports back to the board
on their activities.

Mr Pierre Gatz
(Executive Director);

•

Mr Frédéric Desonnay
(Chief Financial Officer).

The board of directors named a managing director at the first
meeting that followed the start of trading in July 2006, and
this was Mr Denis Steisel. The nomination could be revoked.
The board also named him CEO. He was ultimately responsible
for company management and implementation of the board’s
decisions regarding strategy, planning, values and budget approved by the board. The managing director is appointed by the
board and responsible for daily management of the company.

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS
AND THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The board of directors decided on annual compensation of
€65,000 for all non-executive directors. Directors who are
members of the audit committee also receive €1,000 for
each meeting they attend. Directors who are members of the
remuneration and nomination committee, receive €500 for
each meeting they attend.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE)
The total amount paid by the company to executive directors
rose in 2014 to €1,187,138. Excluding statutory pay required by
labour law, the company is not liable to pay any amount if a
member of the executive committee is dismissed.
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THE AUDITOR
Since 17 March 2006, the company auditor has been Ernst &
Young Réviseurs d’Entreprises SCCRL based at De Kleetlaan 2,
1831 Diegem and represented by Mr Eric Golenvaux, a partner.

SHARES HELD BY THE NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS
The table below shows shares directly or indirectly held by
directors who were not members of the executive committee
on 31 December 2014.

SHARES HELD INDIRECTLY
OR TRANSITIVELY

DIRECTLY HELD SHARES
N° of shares

Percentage
of capital

N° of shares

Percentage
of capital

609,718

15.86%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

Mr François Gillet*

200

0.00%

0

0.00%

Mrs Anne Pinchart*

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

Mrs Daisy Foquet*

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

Mr Denis Steisel
VAPM Consulting, represented by
Mr Pierre-Michel Cattoir*

On 20 March 2006, Ernst & Young Réviseurs d’Entreprises
SCCRL was also appointed auditor of the Belgian subsidiary,
Emakina.BE, and its mandate was renewed in 2008 and 2011
and 2014 for three years.
In 2008, Ernst & Young Réviseurs d’Entreprises was appointed auditor of the Belgian subsidiaries Design is Dead and
The Reference and its mandate was renewed in 2009, 2011 and
2014 for 3 years. In 2013 Ernst & Young Réviseurs d’Entreprises
was appointed auditor of the Belgian subsidiary Your Agency
for three years.

Ernst & Young Réviseurs d’Entreprises SCCRL is represented
by Mr Eric Golenvaux, partner and is also responsible for the
checks and certification of the company’s consolidated financial
statements. The three year term (for the financial years ending
31 December 2014, 2015 and 2016) was renewed at the 2014
AGM, on the recommendation of the audit committee.
The fees for these services for the company and its subsidiaries
amounted to €71,000 for the 2014 financial year.
During the financial year, the auditor also gave the company
special tax advice on increasing capital, for which the fees
were €12,000. Another piece of advice on risk management
was given by a company linked to the auditor, for which the
fees amounted to €16,500.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AMONG DIRECTORS,
OPERATIONS AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
MEMBERS WITH AFFILIATES

* Independent directors

SHARES HELD BY MEMBERS OF
THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Under the stock-option plans of 2008/2009/2010/2011, 77,720 warrants were allocated to the executive directors at an exercise price of
respectively €7.78/8.31/8.09/7.49.
NON EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The table below shows shares held directly or indirectly by
executive directors on 31 December 2014.

DIRECTLY
HELD SHARES

SHARES HELD INDIRECTLY
OR TRANSITIVELY

N° of shares

Percentage
of capital

N° of shares

Percentage
of capital

Mr Brice Le Blévennec

609,718

15.86%

0

0.00%

Mr John Deprez

120,320

3.13%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

674,377/201,869*

17.543%/5.251%

1,139,030

29.63%

0

0.00%

Mr Karim Chouikri
Mr Pierre Gatz

* The Two4Two company is a holding company owned 100% by Mediadreams. Mediadreams is a holding company in which Mr Karim Chouikri owns a 29.9% share. Two4Two’s total holding in
Emakina is 629,326 shares. Mediadreams owns 44,720 shares in Emakina. The figure of 201,869 is Mr Chouikri’s transitive participation in Emakina, obtained by multiplying 629,326 by Mediadreams’
ownership of Two4Two, and Mr Chouikri’s share in Mediadreams, to which is added 44,720 multiplied by Mr Chouikri’s ownership of Mediadreams, plus 330 shares held through another company.

The board of directors does not have an established policy
for transactions and other contractual relationships between
the company, including affiliated companies and directors or
executive managers, other than those covered by legal conflict
of interest provisions (article 523 of the company code).
However, the directors are required to ensure transactions
between themselves and the company are concluded under
normal market conditions.

During the 2014 financial year, there were occasional and sporadic contractual operations between Emakina Group and/or
affiliates and (ii) one or more executive directors.
These contractual operations are insignificant since the total
value of benefits provided to these directors via the transactions was not more than 0.5% of the company’s consolidated
revenue. They were concluded under market conditions.
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RELATIONSHIPS
WITH AFFILIATES
Emakina is listed on the Alternext Brussels, so it is not a listed
company in the sense of article 4 of the Companies’ Code.
Article 524 of the Companies Code – which outlines a special
procedure around the relationship between the company and
any related company (other than its subsidiaries) – does not
apply to Emakina.
However, the management ensures that these kinds of operations and decisions with related companies are reached
in normal market conditions and with normal guarantees for
similar transactions.

RELATIONSHIPS
WITH SIGNIFICANT
SHAREHOLDERS
Current trade and business relations between shareholders
and their affiliates and the company and its subsidiaries include
relationships between shareholder-managers’ management
companies and Emakina.
Amounts charged by shareholder-managers to the company and
its subsidiaries are included in the amounts listed on page 69
of this section of the report for the 2014 financial year, and are
determined by the board of directors on the recommendation
of the nomination and remuneration committee. In addition,
the company and its subsidiaries occasionally use the services
of companies that indirectly have common shareholders with
the company. These services are not significant for Emakina.
The contracts are concluded under market conditions.
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COMPLIANCE WITH
LEGISLATION ON
INSIDER DEALING
AND MARKET
MANIPULATION
(MARKET ABUSE)

Emakina aims to comply with Directive 2003/6/EC on insider
dealing and market manipulation (market abuse).

MAIN FEATURES OF
THE COMPANY’S
INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS DURING
THE PROCESS OF
PREPARING FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

Business growth and changes in the scope of consolidation
of society have led naturally to greater formalisation and
strengthening of the procedures relating to the establishment of financial information (the importance of financial
reporting and deadlines, for example).

During 2014, the directors were forbidden from conducting
transactions in company securities during the period preceding the publication of its financial results (closed period) and
during any other period considered sensitive (blackout). The
list of insiders was kept up to date by the board of directors
throughout 2013.
Finally, on 19 March 2015, the board of directors designated
Mr Frédéric Desonnay as compliance officer (according to
our charter and the Belgian code of corporate governance),
responsible for monitoring compliance with these rules (closed
periods and blackout).

As a result, the system of internal controls within the group
has been strengthened in recent years by the following
measures:
•

implementing a centralised management system for
operational and financial processes (ERP: Navision Dynamics) which offers managers an oversight of operational
aspects and financial results in the making. This integrated
system, introduced early in 2008 and implemented in
almost all entities of the group in 2010, is the main form
of internal control;

•

setting up ‘integrated’ and standardised management for
current projects and recognising revenues, which has
improved the reliability of key processes;

•

formalising and systematically documenting the main control procedures performed by the accounting department;

•

establishing monthly financial reporting, standardised with
and on the same interface as the central management tool;

•

establishing a monthly report tracking cash flow within
the group;

•

formalising payroll management and the administration
of human resources through a new tool called HRWeb;

•

integrating a ‘cash management’ tool throughout the group.
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This chapter contains the consolidated financial statement of Emakina Group at 31 December
2014, with comparative figures from 31 December 2013. It compares the statutory annual
accounts of Emakina at 31 December 2014 with those of 31 December 2013.
The annual and consolidated accounts of Emakina Group for 2014 were presented to the
General Meeting of shareholders on 22 April 2015, after being approved by the board of
directors on 19 March 2015.
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MANAGEMENT
REPORT
an improvement in our average selling prices.
This report is a management report on the consolidated finan- •
cial statement combined with a management report on the
statutory accounts of Emakina Group according to article 119 ORDINARY PROFIT BEFORE AMORTISATION OF GOODWILL
of the Companies’ Code (last paragraph).
ROSE 6%.

NOTABLE EVENTS AND CHANGES IN
ACTIVITIES AT EMAKINA GROUP DURING
THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Adjusted earnings (before amortisation of goodwill) grew by
€103,931, however these are limited by (i) higher depreciation
charges linked to changing scope and (ii) a weaker financial
result in 2014 following the absence of significant capital gain
on disposal of investment.

EMAKINA GROUP SALES OUTSIDE BELGIUM NEARLY DOUBLED Amortisation of goodwill (imposed by Belgian GAAP) impacts negIN 2014
atively on the net income of the company, which was €1,619,758
in 2014 compared to €1,028,432 in 2013, due to changes in the
In 2014, Emakina Group sales rose to €56,135,588 compared to
scope in 2013 and 2014. The Belgian GAAP element, which
€50,117,336 in 2013, an increase of 12.0% (+ 10.7% at constant
imposes systematic depreciation, weighs significantly on the
scope).
consolidated net income.
The sales growth rate for parts of the group ‘outside Belgium’
was 93% in 2014, which shows our acquisition of market share INNOVATION & STRATEGIC INVESTMENTS
abroad, in line with the strategy of internationalisation. In terms
Emakina continues to invest in innovation and strategies to
of customers, half of consolidated revenues in 2014 were genmaintain its competitive advantage and services:
erated from customers outside Belgium.
in June 2014, the Group completed a large theoretical
•
Looking back over the year, the acquisition of the Dutch digital
and empirical study project on the possible applications
communication agency Relephant in October 2013 (through the
of ‘gamification’ in order to promote engagement in the
holding company Den Gulden Winckel BV) allowed Emakina to
business world through digital technologies. This project
become a leading agency in the Netherlands, with a presence
is supported by the Brussels Region (Innoviris);
in Rotterdam and Amsterdam, while the acquisition of the Parisian Toy Agency in July 2014 enabled Emakina to strengthen its •
Emakina Group continues to create direct marketing
position in the French market by broadening its skills in strategy
solutions for ‘B2C’ (business to consumer) brands. Our
and creative advertising.
work with Audi and Dela, in particular, is building direct
marketing relationships through digital media;
In 2014, major new national and international accounts included
Attractive World, Auping, Brantano, Campina, Education Above •
Emakina invests in experienced consultants, with a proven
All, FIVB (International Volleyball Federation), Gonewest.be (West
set of methods, to strengthen its position as the go-to
Flanders Province), IWC, Ladbrokes, Lola & Liza, Mons 2015,
partner for digital transformation.
Palm, SD WORX, Shurgard, Solaris, Unilever Food Solutions and
Compared with the end of 2013, the group maintained satisYves Rocher. All these chose an Emakina Group agency as their
factory financial stability during 2014 thanks to debt controls,
communications partner.
maintaining stable working capital and available lines of renewed
and adapted credit. In the first half of 2014, a simplification of
OPERATING PROFIT (BEFORE AMORTISATION) INCREASED
the group structure allowed it to rationalise its size, from 18
BY 33%
to 12 legal entities.
Operating profit before depreciation (EBITDA) amounted to
€4,053,307 in 2014, compared with €3,056,353 the year before. CHANGES IN THE GROUP IN 2014 AND MAJOR EVENTS
These figures represented 7.2% and 6.1% respectively of the
total consolidated sales. At constant scope, EBITDA came to Acquisition of Toy Agency
€3,833,472 or 6.9% of total consolidated sales. This was a result
of the integration of the Parisian Toy Agency’s activities, whose To strengthen its creative teams and advertising expertise in
positive effects are already reflected in the consolidated results France, Emakina acquired 100% of shares in Toy Agency, a
French creative advertising agency. This marks a turning point for
for the second half of 2014.
the agency: thanks to this acquisition, we now have far greater
Several factors explain the improvement of the EBITDA margin expertise in advertising and traditional marketing communicaduring 2014, including:
tions. The founder of Toy, Nicolas de Dampierre, has joined the
management committee of Emakina.FR and taken over the
•
better use of resources;
management of creative functions.
•
controlling the average cost of staff and general costs;

New specialist centre: Emakina / Insights

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Belgian accounting standards.

Thanks to its integrated approach, Emakina / Insights provides
analytical results for companies facing their digitisation challenge,
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS
and also gives advice in business ‘intelligence’ and managerial
support.
In 2014, Emakina Group sales came to €56,135,588, compared
to €50,117,336 the previous year – an increase 12.0%. At constant
scope (considering 12 months of the 2014 and 2013 results for
A year of six Mixx awards
all subsidiaries controlled by Emakina Group at 31 December
Emakina won six of these prestigious awards through three of
2013), sales increased by 10.7% to €55,495,162.
its agencies, each in its specific field. Emakina.BE was awarded
two prizes in the Web Design category, Your Agency picked The sales growth rate for entities “outside Belgium” is 93% in 2014,
up two social awards, and The Reference brought home two which demonstrates acquisition of market share abroad in line
nominations for Optimised Websites.
with the internationalisation strategy. In terms of customers, half
of consolidated revenues in 2014 were generated from customers
outside Belgium.
New Emakina website
As a digital native agency, it was important for Emakina to keep
its website up to date. So it was goodbye to a static site and
hello to responsive design, sleek and personalised content.
With improved graphics and integration with social networks,
the new Emakina website is a prime example of the agency’s
expertise in web building.

COMMENTS ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
EMAKINA GROUP

In accordance with the group’s rules, it decided to invest €129,698
in R & D into “gamification” in 2014, under the capitalised production account. This positively influenced results in 2014.
The cost of sales and services represented 92.8% of total of sales
in 2014 compared to 93.9% in 2013. In more detail, the cost of
purchases, services and other goods corresponded to 47.5%
of total sales in 2014, against 48.2% in 2013. This was primarily
due to the reduced use of outsourcing for projects. Staff costs
compared to total sales decreased in 2014 (45.0%) compared to
2013 (45.9%) thanks to better use of our resources.

The amount of depreciation on fixed (in)tangible assets increased
During the 2014 financial year, the investments made by by €1,370,127 to €1,560,223, mainly as a result of merging
Emakina Group have meant that its scope of consolidation has the goodwill on Brussels-based entities, plus investment in IT
hardware to support growth and introduce our new integrated
changed in the following ways:
management tool.
acquisition of 12% more shares in Emakina.CH on 1 May
•
Operating profit before depreciation (EBITDA) amounted to
2014, takes its stake from 52% to 64%;
€4,053,307 in 2014 (or 7.2% of sales) compared to €3,056,353 in
acquisition of 100% of shares in Toy Agency by Emakina.FR 2013 (or 6.1% of sales), up 33%. At constant scope, EBITDA rose
•
on 1 July 2014;
from 5.6% to 6.9% of sales between 2013 and 2014.
creation of the company Emakina / Insights on 1 July 2014; Amortisation of goodwill is recognised in financial expenses, in
•
•
•

•
•
•

Emakina.EU and Emakina Media companies were amal- accordance with Belgian accounting standards; this rose from
€1,028,432 in 2013 to €1,619,758 in 2014, mainly due to a full year’s
gamated into Emakina.BE on 1 January 2014;
amortisation of goodwill related to the Relephant acquisition.
merger of the Dutch entities into a single entity called
Emakina.NL in early 2014, holding 100% of the structure Once again, in accordance with our valuation rules, the difof the Turkish Emakina Bilgisayar Yazılım Ltd. Şti. (Emakina ferences in consolidation are amortised over a period of eight
years, regardless of any eventual overvaluation. This element of
Turkey);
Belgian accounting laws weighs heavily – as it does every year
liquidation of companies Merge Media and Emakina.UK – on the group’s 2014 consolidated net income, which without
at the end of 2014;
this element would be a positive result of €766,274, instead of a
sale of the minority stake in the Yabolka company at the loss of €853,484. IFRS international accounting standards would
not require a systematic amortisation of goodwill.
end of 2014;
reclassification of the minority stake in the company
Robert & Marien in ‘Other Investments’ (by contrast, it
was accounted for under the equity method at 31 December 2013).

Financial costs increased from €673,515 in 2013 to €721,734
in 2014, while the charges for financial products for the same
period decreased from €754,798 to €261,454, due to changes
in short-term investments.
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In 2014, exceptional items mainly consist of the costs of commercial reorganisation of the Swiss organisation, plus expenses
related to the liquidation of the companies Merge Media and
Emakina.UK.

to higher billing at the end of December 2014 compared to the
end of 2013, following a 12% increase in consolidated sales over
the same period. In addition, the average time taken for clients
to pay increased from 78 days to 93 days, which influenced
overall trade receivables.

The pre-tax profit/loss of changed from €724,848 in 2013 to
-€61,916 in 2014 due to significantly lower financial and excep- The change in cash investments and disposable assets for the
years 2014 and 2013 is detailed in the consolidated financing table.
tional results.
The net deferred tax charge of €61,467 in 2014 is due to the use
of €89,937 in deferred tax assets from the results of Emakina.NL,
as well as a transfer of €4,106 to untaxed reserves, offset by a
reversal of €32,576 in deferred tax liabilities. This latter is due to
amortisation written down on the acquisition costs of subsidiaries
in consolidated and statutory accounts.

The company’s consolidated shareholders’ equity amounted to
€9,135,600 on 31 December 2014 compared to €10,266,608 on
31 December 2013. This change is explained by the decrease
of €1,131,008 in reserves.
Capital: €9,229,661

Share premium: €3,101,458
The impact of taxes on income increased from €550,762 in 2013
to €730,101 in 2014, mainly due to changes in the operating Reserves: €3,191,387
results of various parts of the group.
Foreign currency translation differences: €4,132
Net income decreased from €148,567 in 2013 to -€853,484 in
Total: €9,135,600
2014. Before depreciation of goodwill, the group’s consolidated
net income for 2014 is €766,274 (compared with €1,176,999 in The €670,127 in third-party interests corresponds to deferred
2013).
consolidated revenues held by minority interests in Emakina.CH
(36%) and Emakina NL (45.5%).
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
Deferred tax liabilities are €12,068 at 31 December 2014, comStart-up costs primarily refer to restructuring costs for a redun- pared to €44,645 at 31 December 2013, because of expenses
dancy plan at Emakina.BE that took place in 2013, to better align related to acquisitions consolidated through goodwill.
customer needs with people’s skills.
Debts due in more than a year (including those due within
Intangible assets increased by €25,071. This is due to invest- the year) include funding obtained over three or four years for
ments of €571,000, offset by a depreciation of €932,000, and significant investments in IT and fixed assets. These liabilities
by a transfer increasing intangible assets to a net book value of decreased by €284,080 over the period.
€386,000. Investments consist primarily of capital costs related
Financial liabilities are debts relating to short term straight loans
to developing the new Emakina Group website at a cost of
as well as short-term financing (for holiday and year-end bonus€186,000, research and development expenses of €310,000 at
es, etc.). These debts decreased by €1,359,768 for the period
Emakina.BE, €55,000 spent on various software licenses and
following positive changes in working capital.
acquisitions of goodwill costing €20,000.
Trade payables increased by 18% at the end of 2014 compared
The amount of goodwill corresponding to the costs of acquito the end of 2013, which is explained by our adapting to the
sition of interests – including ancillary costs – decreased from
rate of payment most suitable for our suppliers.
€7,084,341 at the end of 2013 to €6,582,723 at the end of
2014. This is because of additional shares taken in investments Salary and social tax liabilities change according to the group’s
already controlled by Emakina Group and in additional or new activity.
shareholdings (Emakina.CH and Toy Agency).
Contracts in progress fell by €1,231,477 at the end of 2014 comInvestments in tangible fixed assets decreased by €456,000 at pared to the end of 2013. This strong drop should be looked
the end of 2014, compared to 2013, following acquisitions worth at alongside changes in payments received on orders, which
€404,000 during that financial year (€284,000 for facilities, increased by €1,979,923 between 31 December 2013 and 31
€57,000 for other capital investments, and €63,000 for assets December 2014.
under construction), plus new acquisitions of €25,000 and
divestitures of €32,000 (net book value), offset by depreciation Consolidated net equity for ongoing projects improved from
charges of €531,000 and transfers of €386,000 (net book value). the end of 2013 to the end of 2014, rising by approximately
€3,211,400 (plus net pre-financing). This is because of higher
Contracts in progress dropped by €1,231,477 at the end of 2014 advance billing than in the same period last year.
compared to the end of 2013. This strong fall should be looked
at alongside changes in payments received on contracts (see The significant amount of other liabilities is largely due to pre-fibelow), which increased by €1,979,923 between 31 December nancing needed for factoring trade receivables, as well as debts
2013 and 31 December 2014. Consolidated net equity for on- owed to former shareholders and directors.
going projects improved between the end of 2013 and the end
of 2014, by approximately €3,211,400 (plus net pre-financing).
COMMENTS ON EMAKINA GROUP’S
This is explained by a considerable amount of billing at the end
(STATUTORY) ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
of 2014, compared to the same period in the previous year.
Amounts receivable within one year rose by 33% at 31 December The statutory annual accounts reflect only the financial position
2014 (€18,474,776) compared to 31 December 2013 (€13,845,816). of the parent company after allocation of 2014 income and are
This is mainly due to a 34% increase in trade receivables, thanks prepared in accordance with Belgian accounting rules (GAAP).
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STATUTORY INCOME STATEMENT

BALANCE SHEET

Most of Emakina Group’s income from activities in 2014 comes
from (i) the invoicing of management fees, royalties and other
expenses totalling €4,427,789 (ii) gains on the sale of shares
totalling €1,407,626 (sale of the shares held in the former subsidiary Emakina Media and sale of company shares), (iii) the
receipt of dividends from subsidiaries totalling €355,605, and
(iv) charging interest on cash investments and other financial
products, totalling €1,822.

In terms of assets, major changes at 31 December 2014 compared to 31 December 2013 relate to:

Emakina Group’s operating costs of €4,336,793 in 2014 consist
of executive management fees (including non-executive directors) of 29%, staff costs of 26%, various services and goods of
19%, external fees related to the group’s legal and contractual
obligations (lawyers, auditors, etc) at 14%, amortisation and
write-downs at 7% and purchases related to internal projects
(such as the new website) at 5%.
The depreciation amount of €297,074 corresponds mainly to the
costs related to website development amortised over a period
of three years, plus expenses linked to the IPO, amortised over a
period of eight years. The amount of write-downs corresponds
to a reduction in value on unpaid invoices of €16,120.

•

amortisation of €37,958 on fees related to the IPO;

•

increase of €193,224 in intangible assets (development of
our group website and planning tool), offset by depreciation of €241,427;

•

the increase of €8,350 in tangible fixed assets offset by
depreciation of €17,688;

•

changes in the value of equity (up €1,649,628) due to
changes in scope, and costs related to paid ‘earn-out’.

In addition, the relatively high level of trade receivables of €813,336
and other receivables of €1,702,351 at 31 December 2014 is
explained by significant open positions at related companies.
At 31 December 2014, the company’s equity after allocation
amounted to €15,837,233 compared to €14,412,001 at the end
2013. The change in equity is due to the allocation of profit for
the year 2014 (see below).

Subscribed capital: €9,229,661
Dividends received from subsidiaries during the year 2014
Reserves: €365,417
amounted to €355,605.
The 2014 financial year closed with a net profit of €1,425,233. This Share premium: €3,101,458
profit for the year will be fully reported (see allocation of income Retained earnings: €3,140,697
in 2014 proposed at the General Meeting of Shareholders below).
Total: €15,837,233
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History of capital in the last seven fiscal years is summarised below:

DATE

TYPE

TERMS

INCREASE
(EUR)

N° SHARES
CREATED

SHARE
PREMIUM
(EUR)

1 July 2008

Contribution
in kind

Authorised
capital

57,897.60

24,124

266,572.59

8,306,412.18

3,459,533

14 July 2009

Contribution
in kind

Authorised
capital

89,257.96

37,175

245,317.04

8,395,670.14

3,496,708

1 July 2010

Contribution
in kind

Authorised
capital

120,593.68

50,226

376,643.72

8,516,263.82

3,546,934

1 July 2010

Contribution
in kind

Authorised
capital

600,099.20

249,935

1,874,257.30

9,116,363.02

3,796,869

15 July 2011

Contribution
in kind

Authorised
capital

28,562.55

11,896

89,207.45

9,144,925.57

3,808,765

15 July 2011

Contribution
in kind

Authorised
capital

59,963.10

24,974

172,044.90

9,204,888.67

3,833,739

15 July 2013

Contribution
in kind

Authorised
capital

102,187.8

10,322

77,415.00

9,229,661.47

3,844,061

CAPITAL
(EUR)

TOTAL N°
SHARES

The amount of other debts is due to the total of the management clients represent about 25% of total consolidated revenue, which
bonus, as well as amounts open to group companies.
limits the overall impact of losing a large account.
The amount of €425,000 in long-term debt refers to a loan Finally, Emakina Group works primarily with major national and
received from Exportbru in 2012 as part of the acquisition of international accounts and governmental bodies, which limits
Emakina.CH as well as a loan taken from BNP Paribas Fortis in the risk of customer insolvency.
2013 for the acquisition of Relephant.
Risks associated with subcontractors
The figure of €800,000 in debt refers to a straight loan.

RISK ANALYSIS
The main risks and uncertainties that the group faces are:
OPERATIONAL RISKS
Customer-related risks
The group’s companies regularly work inside complex and innovative technological environments. So customers could take
issue with whether or not their projects have been successfully
completed. In this situation, it is not impossible that a company of
Emakina Group might be sued and be forced to pay damages,
or might have to negotiate to resolve the dispute.
It should be noted that there is currently a dispute between
Emakina Group via one of its subsidiaries and a customer, who
disputes the outcome of a campaign in late 2010. A judgment
in our favour was given in June 2011. However the client has
appealed, and the appeal judgment expected in October 2013
was eventually postponed until April 2015. A sequestration of
funds conducted in 2011 made it possible to freeze the unpaid
balance. So the group believes there is a strong probability of
recovering the disputed amount of €300,000 in full.
At the end of 2013, faced with these kinds of issues, Emakina Group
renegotiated a comprehensive professional liability policy. This
covers the risks of project implementation (such as delivery
and warranties), plus indirect risks (such as impact on image)
for which group company employees are liable (and also their
subcontractors, under certain conditions).

Group companies outsource work to third parties if there are
difficulties with scheduling or a lack of specific skills. These
subcontractors are subject to prior vetting by our experts and
are closely supervised.

Technological risks

Credit risk

Technological innovation has been the cornerstone of the group’s
strategy since its inception. Emakina Group, an internet pioneer,
continuously monitors developments in technology to maintain
a competitive edge, and its CTO and CVO play a strong role in
this. One of the group’s greatest management concerns is to
ensure continuing training for employees in these innovations.

Because of its well-diversified portfolio of customers, the group
has no significant concentration of credit risk. It also has policies
such as validating new customers on their historical credit risk
(through a subscription to a credit rating database).

Compared to the end of 2013, the group continued to have
a satisfactory level of financial stability during 2014, thanks to
Emakina Group’s standard contract with clients stipulates controls on the level of debt, stable working capital needs, and
that intellectual property rights on computer code remain the with adjusted and renewed lines of credit available.
property of the group unless otherwise negotiated and stated.
At the 31 December 2014, the Group had complied with all
However, subcontractors are required to transfer their intelits banking covenants.
lectual property rights on computer code to Emakina Group.
Intellectual Property Risks

Risks related to talent retention
Management’s ability to retain and motivate key employees
is a major factor in the group’s performance and success – at
a whole company and subsidiary level. It is essential to retain
talent through relevant HR policies such as stock-option plans,
performance bonuses, and promoting talented employees to
leadership roles.
Risks related to the market and competition

In the course of its activities, Emakina Group is exposed to
various types of financial risk. A table monitoring major risks is
regularly reviewed with the audit committee, to anticipate issues
and minimize their impact on group performance.

Risks related to profitability

Currency risk

The profitability of group companies is analysed on a monthly
basis through performance indicators such as their use of
operational resources, the level of selling prices, the cost of
personnel, subcontracting margins, and potential cost overruns
on fixed-price projects.

About 10% of turnover is generated in non-euro foreign currency,
the vast majority of which is Swiss Francs. Much of this risk is
naturally offset by Swiss Franc production costs at our Geneva
branch. Group management is very vigilant about changes in
the value of Swiss and Turkish currency.

Most of the group’s consolidated turnover is generated by
fixed-price contracts. Profitability depends on managers’ ability
to meet deadlines and costs: if they exceed the budget, the
project’s profitability will be directly affected. To reduce these
risks, managers try to limit penalties to the level of the insurance
cover, and deliver work in a series of steps agreed with customers.
In addition, a significant portion of income comes from framework agreements for public institutions or large private accounts.

These agreements set out the privileged or sometimes exclusive
nature of the relationship, and conditions such as prices, payment
terms and billing plans. They span anything from a period of
several months to years, but they do not specify the volume of
It should also be noted that Emakina Group has a client portfo- work, resulting in a risk to the predictability of income and the
lio of more than 300 accounts in Europe. Only the five biggest corresponding profit margin.

OUTLOOK FOR 2015
SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER CLOSURE OF
ACCOUNTS AND OTHER EVENTS THAT MAY HAVE A SIGNIFICANT
INFLUENCE ON ACTIVITIES
There were no significant events after the closure of accounts.
BUSINESS DEVELOPMENTS

Emakina Group’s management anticipates organic growth to
For some years, the market for digital agencies has been highsales figures in 2015, on the basis of commercial loans and the
ly concentrated: big businesses buy small ones, or the small
group’s international expansion.
naturally disappear due to lack of critical mass. Since its IPO,
Emakina Group’s policy has been to continue to grow organically but also play an active part in the process of concentrating CONFLICTS OF INTEREST BETWEEN THE
the industry, to offer a better service to its major accounts and
DIRECTORS AND THE COMPANY
improve its geographical presence.
The board of directors had not had to deal with any decision
FINANCIAL RISKS
that would mean applying article 523 of the Companies Code.

Our comprehensive professional liability policy covers subcontractors under certain conditions (such as their prior vetting by
our experts).

Risks related to contracts

Liquidity and debt risk

There are very few purchases in non-euro denominations.
The international expansion of the group will naturally increase
the group’s exposure to this specific risk.
Interest rate risk
The interest rate risk is mainly related to the variable Euribor rate,
which is the basis of all of the group’s short term financing of
up to 12 months. This means the group is currently benefiting
from low short-term rates, while limiting the risk of long-term
interest rate rises through fixed-rate financing for financing of
over 12 months.
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LEGAL INFORMATION RELATING TO THE TRANSPOSITION OF THE OPA DIRECTIVE
CAPITAL STRUCTURE:
At 31 December 2014, the capital of Emakina Group SA consisted of 3,844,061 shares, broken down as follows:
SHAREHOLDER

SUPPRESSION OF THE SHAREHOLDER’S
PREFERRED SUBSCRIPTION RIGHT ON
THE RELEASE OF WARRANTS IN THE
EMAKINA GROUP PUBLIC LIMITED
COMPANY

DEMATERIALISED SHARES

%

Mr P. Gatz

1,139,030

29.631

Two4Two

629,326

16.371

Mr D. Steisel

609,718

15.861

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES

Mr B. Le Blévennec

609,718

15.861

Tarraco Holding

296,052

7.702

Public (dématérialisées)

285,808

7.435

Within the course of its work, Emakina continues to conduct
ongoing research into developing and implementing technological solutions, particularly in engagement techniques
related to gamification.

Mr J. Deprez

120,320

3.130

Mediadreams

44,720

1.163

Zenyo

42,725

1.111

Suntzu Holding

34,757

0.904

Mr R. De Kruijff

10,680

0.278

Emakina Group

12,696

0.330

8,511

0.221

3,844,061

100%

Mr J. Zwaan
TOTAL:

Following the stock-options plans in 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011 •
offered to staff, consultants and directors of the company or its
subsidiaries, 208,220 warrants were issued.
SHAREHOLDERS’ AGREEMENT:

each shareholder undertakes to vote in favour of the director(s) proposed by another shareholder, provided the
latter is entitled to propose candidate directors based on
the number of 20% blocks of company voting rights that
he or she holds;

as each share gives entitlement to one vote, the main
As stated in our corporate governance charter, which can be •
shareholders do not have different voting rights.
viewed on the company’s website (www.emakina.com), the
‘historic’ shareholders of the Emakina Group (Mr Denis Steisel, Mr Brice Le Blévennec, Mr Karim Chouikri and Mr John
Deprez) have signed a shareholders’ agreement, to which the CAPITAL INCREASE UNDER AUTHORISED
company is not party, which has been applied since the IPO CAPITAL (ART. 608, BELGIAN COMPANIES
in July 2006. The provisions of this agreement are as follows:

CODE)

•

the shareholders undertake to vote in favour of maintaining
During the 2014 financial year, Emakina Group’s board of diand renewing the mandates of the directors appointed at
rectors has not carried out a capital increase in the authorised
the company’s Extraordinary General Meeting of 17 March
capital pursuant to section 17a of statutes of Emakina Group.
2006, namely Mr Denis Steisel, Mr Brice Le Blévennec, Mr
Karim Chouikri and Mr John Deprez unless there is cause
for dismissal based on serious misconduct in exercising
the mandate;

•

additionally, each shareholder who holds at least 20%
of the voting rights of the company shall be entitled to
propose a director for every 20% block of voting rights
that he or she holds;

PROPOSED APPROPRIATION OF PROFITS
We propose that the Annual General Meeting should allocate
the 2014 statutory profits (net and carried forward) of €3,281,066
as follows:
•

The Emakina Group board of directors has not issued warrants •
in 2014.
•

allocation to the legal reserve of €71,262;
allocation to other reserves of €69,107;
amount carried forward of €3,140,697.

The absence of dividend payments is justified by the management’s wish to reinforce our own funds and to reinvest these
finances in group expansion.

EXEMPTION GRANTED TO THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDITOR

In its December 2011 session, the company’s board of directors
It is proposed that the directors and the auditor be granted
decided to authorise certain research and development costs
exemption.
in specific cases:
The board of directors thanks our shareholders, employees,
solely for R&D projects representing an investment of
•
clients and partners for their constant and constructive support
more than €50,000. In addition, these projects must be
in developing Emakina’s business.
supported by subsidies from a public body;
Brussels, 19 March 2015.
based on real cost (as long as the latter does not go above
•
a carefully-established estimate of the practical value of On behalf of the board of directors:
fixed assets or their future return for the company) and a
Mr Brice Le Blévennec
three-year, linear amortisation;
by ‘capitalising’ the item in the income statement, in com- Managing director
•
pliance with the provisions of regulation CNC 2011/13 (4 Mr Karim Chouikri
May 2011).
Managing director
In 2014, R&D related costs (in the gamification sector) came
to €129,698, and the investment has favourably influenced
the group results.

BRANCHES OF THE COMPANY
The company has no branches.
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CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS AT
31 DECEMBER 2014
CONSOLIDATION SCOPE
The companies that are part of the scope of consolidation on
•
31 December 2014 are:
•

Emakina.BE SA, held at 100%

•

Emakina.CH SA, held at 64%

•

Emakina.FR SA, held at 100%
Toy Agency SARL, held at 100% by Emakina.FR

•

Emakina.BV*, held at 54.5%
Emakina Bilgisayar Yazılım Ltd. Şti. (Emakina Turkey),
held at 100% by Emakina.BV

structure of the Turkish Emakina Bilgisayar Yazılım Ltd. Şti.
(Emakina Turkey);

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET ESTABLISHED ACCORDING TO BELGIAN ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (BELGIAN GAAP) AFTER DISTRIBUTION*

liquidation of the companies Merge Media and Emakina.UK
at the end of 2014;

•

sale of the minority stake in the Yabolka company at the
end of 2014;

•

reclassification of the minority stake in the company
Robert & Marien in ‘Other investments’ on the balance
sheet, while it was accounted for using the equity method
at 31 December 2013.

ASSETS (EUR)
FIXED ASSETS

CODES

31/12/2014

31/12/2013

20/28

10,176,906

11,171,038

I

Formation expenses (appx. VII)

20

195,055

297,600

II

Intangible assets (appx. VIII)

21

2,063,497

2,038,425

III

Consolidation differences (appx appx. XII)

9920

6,582,723

7,084,341

IV

Tangible assets (appx. IX)

22/27

1,028,533

1,484,521

•

Emakina / Insights SPRL, held at 100%

CONSOLIDATION METHOD

B.

Plant, machinery and equipment

23

319,552

320,623

•

The Reference NV, held at 100%

C.

Furniture and vehicles

24

393,281

510,956

•

Design is Dead BVBA, held at 100%

D.

Leasing and other similar rights

25

0

25,279

•

Your Agency SA, held at 100%

All of the subsidiaries of Emakina Group (see section above) are
consolidated according to the full consolidation method, with
the exception of Robert & Marien, which is classed amongst
‘Other investments’.

E.

Other tangible assets

26

253,104

304,065

•

Robert & Marien SPRL, held at 25%

F.

Fixed assets under constructions

27

62,596

323,598

•

Emakina Group SA, parent company.

The full consolidation method is adopted when a subsidiary is
controlled by the parent company provided:

28

307,098

266,151

9921

0

14,001

99211

0

14,001

284/8

307,098

252,150

284

74,585

36,804

285/8

232,513

215,346

29/58

24,759,590

22,450,532

3

3,255,404

4,486,882

37

3,255,404

4,486,882

40/41

18,553,913

13,938,857

*Emakina BV’s commercial name is Emakina.NL.

•

Individual information for each subsidiary is included on page
•
92, Appendix 1, in this report.

either the parent company owns more than 50% of the
capital, directly or indirectly;
or the parent company has control over the management
bodies of the company concerned.

As previously mentioned, during the 2014 financial year,
This method incorporates each element of the assets and
Emakina Group’s consolidation scope changed as follows, due
liabilities of the integrated subsidiaries in the accounts of the
to investments made by Emakina Group:
parent company, as a replacement for the balance sheet value
•
acquisition of an additional 12% of shares in Emakina.CH, of these investments.
increasing the shareholding from 52% to 64% on 1 May 2014;
Use of this method leads to goodwill on consolidation and
•
acquisition of 100% of shares in the company Toy Agency minority interests being reported. Similarly, the expenses and
by Emakina.FR, on 1 July 2014;
products of these subsidiaries are combined with those of the
parent company and their results for the year are divided into
creation of the company Emakina / Insights on 1 July 2014;
•
those of the group and those of minority interests.
•
merger of Emakina.EU and Emakina Media companies
The intercompany transactions affecting assets and liabilities
into Emakina.BE accounts on 1 January 2014;
such as shareholdings, accounts payable and receivable, as well
merger of the Dutch entities into a single entity called as figures such as interest, charges and proceeds, are cancelled
•
Emakina.NL at the start of 2014, holding 100% of the out in the consolidated data.

V
A.

Financial fixed assets (appx. I to IV and X)
Associates
1. Investments

B.

Other enterprises
1. Participating interests and shares
2. Amounts receivable

CURRENT ASSETS
VII
B.

VIII

Stocks and contracts in progress
Contracts in progress

Amounts receivable within one year

A.

Trade debtors

40

17,556,121

13,060,063

B.

Other amounts receivable

41

997,792

878,794

1. Deferred taxes

412

79,136

93,041

2. Others

416

918,656

785,753

50/53

314,201

305,890

50

74,998

5,890

51/53

239,203

300,000

IX

Current investments

A.

Own shares

B.

Other investments

X

Cash at bank and in hand

54/58

2,044,869

2,863,659

XI

Deferred charges and accrued income

490/1

591,203

855,244

20/58

34,936,496

33,621,570

TOTAL ASSET

* Article 124 of the Royal Decree of 30 January 2001 implementing the Companies Code
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET ESTABLISHED ACCORDING TO BELGIAN ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (BELGIAN GAAP) (CONTINUED)
LIABILITIES (EUR)

CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS ESTABLISHED ACCORDING TO BELGIAN ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (BELGIAN GAAP)

CODES

31/12/2014

31/12/2013

CODES

31/12/2014

31/12/2013

10/15

9,135,600

10,266,607

I

Operating income

10

9,229,661

9,229,661

1.

Sales and services

70/74

56,135,588

50,117,336

A. Issued capital

100

9,229,661

9,229,661

A. Turnover (appx. XIV, A)

70

53,444,947

48,680,249

II

Share premium account

11

3,101,458

3,101,458

B. Variations in contracts in progress

71

51,959

298,779

IV

Consolidated reserves (appx. XI)

9910

-3,191,387

-2,059,184

C. Capitalised Production

72

129,698

110,489

VI

Exchange rate differences

9912

-4,132

-5,328

D. Other operating income

74

2,508,984

1,027,819

670,127

338,629

60/64

53,774,314

48,401,557

9913

670,127

338,629

60

8,322,884

6,708,357

PROVISIONS, DEFERRED TAXES AND TAX
LIABILITIES

16

12,068

44,645

600/8

8,322,884

6,708,357

Deferred taxes and deferred tax liabilities (appx.
VI, B)

B. Services and other goods

61

18,342,597

17,438,109

168

12,068

44,645

C. Wages, social security costs and pensions

62

25,272,915

23,048,167

17/49

25,118,701

22,971,689

630

1,560,223

1,370,127

17

1,470,618

2,186,146

D. Depreciation and other amounts written off on
formation expenses, intangible and tangible fixed
assets

170/4

1,470,618

2,186,146

E. Amounts written off on stocks, work in progress
and trade debts (appropriations +; reversals -)

631/4

131,810

-24,553

3. Leasing debts

172

87,102

132,392

4. Credit institutions

173

1,383,516

1,942,469

F. Provisions for liabilities and charges
(appropriations +; utilisation; reversals -)

635/7

0

-5,000

5. Other long-term debts

174

0

111,285

G. Other operating expenses

640/8

143,885

119,578

42/48

23,206,853

20,243,085

649

0

-253,228

9901

2,361,274

1,715,779

4,053,307

3,056,353

75

261,454

754,798

A. Income from financial fixed assets

750

25,208

5,365

B. Income from current assets

751

10,805

32,642

752/9

225,441

716,791

65

2,341,493

1,701,947

A. Interest and debt charges

650

480,313

403,414

B. Amortisation of goodwill

9961

1,619,758

1,028,432

D. Other financial expenses

652/9

241,422

270,101

9902

281,235

768,630

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
I

Capital

MINORITY INTERESTS
VIII

IX B.

Minority interests

DEBTS
X
A.

XI

Amounts payable after one year (appx. XIII)
Financial debts

Amounts payable within the year (appx. XIII)

A.

Amounts payable after one year due within the year

42

1,320,845

889,396

B.

Financial debts

43

4,788,341

6,148,109

430/8

2,413,634

3,184,620

439

2,374,707

2,963,489

44

4,690,241

3,964,507

440/4

4,690,241

3,964,507

1. Credit institutions
2. Other short-term debts

C.

Trade debts
1. Suppliers

D.

Advances received

46

5,400,122

3,420,199

E.

Taxes, wages and social security

45

5,233,689

4,443,701

1. Taxes

450/3

1,746,471

1,296,827

2. Wages and Social Security

454/9

3,487,218

3,146,874

47/48

1,773,615

1,377,173

492/3

441,230

542,458

10/49

34,936,496

33,621,570

F.

XII

Other debts

Accrued charges and deferred income
TOTAL LIABILITIES

INCOME STATEMENT (EUR)

2.

Cost of sales and services
A. Raw materials and consumables
1. Purchases

H. Operating charges included under the assets as
restructuring costs

3.

Operating Profits
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation = EBITDA

II

Financial results

1.

Financial income

C. Other financial income

2.

III

Financial expenses

Current profit before tax
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CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS ESTABLISHED ACCORDING TO BELGIAN ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (BELGIAN GAAP) (CONTINUED)
INCOME STATEMENT (EUR)
IV

Extraordinary results

1.

Extraordinary income

31/12/2013

75,630

A. A
 djustments to depreciation and to other
amounts written off on intangible and tangible
fixed assets

760

0

69,350

B. A
 djustments to amounts written off on fixed
financial assets

761

6,950

0

C. A
 djustments to provisions for extraordinary
liabilities and charges

762

0

666

764/9

56,016

5,614

66

406,117

119,412

B. Amounts written off on fixed financial assets

661

7,419

0

D. Losses on the disposal of fixed assets

663

132

75,975

664/8

398,566

43,437

9903

-61,916

724,848

61,467

11,193

Extraordinary expenses

V

Profit before tax

VI

Deferred taxes
A. Transfers from deferred taxes

780

163,152

43,942

B. Transfers to deferred taxes

680

101,685

32,749

67/77

730,101

550,762

A. Taxes

67

732,027

563,205

B. A
 djustment of income taxes and write-back of tax
provisions

77

1,926

12,443

Income tax

OPERATING CASH FLOW

31/12/2014

31/12/2013

-1,132,150

-44,697

278,666

193,264

0

14,327

3,179,981

2,329,210

Amortisation of goodwill

1,619,758

1,028,432

Other items in amortisation

1,560,223

1,300,778

Write-off

139,229

-24,553

Provisions

0

-5,000

Transfers to deferred taxes

163,152

43,942

Transfers from deferred taxes

-101,685

-32,749

134

75,975

OPERATING CASH FLOW

2,527,327

2,549,719

Changes in current assets

-3,273,561

120,878

Stocks

1,231,477

-73,789

Amounts receivable < 1 year

-4,760,771

400,226

264,043

-295,559

-8,311

90,000

3,790,859

-393,961

Trade debts

725,734

408,516

Taxes and social security

789,988

-381,605

Work in progress

1,979,923

-153,395

Other debts

396,443

-188,992

Accrued charges and deferred income

-101,229

-78,485

517,298

-273,083

3,044,625

2,276,636

Result of the group
62,966

E. Other extraordinary expenses (appx. XIV, C)

VII

31/12/2014

76

F. Other extraordinary income

2.

CODES

CASH FLOW STATEMENT (EUR)

XII.

Result for the financial year

9904

-853,484

162,893

XIII.

Share of the group in the result of companies
consolidated using the equity method

9975

0

-14,326

XIV.

Consolidated results

9976

-853,484

148,567

A. Share of minority interests

99761

278,666

193,264

D. Share of the group

99762

-1,132,150

-44,697

Result of minority interests
Result of companies consolidated using the equity method
Amortisation

Net results on the disposal of assets

Accrued income and deferred charges
Investments

Changes in liabilities (short-term)

WORKING CAPITAL FLUCTUATION
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A)

F I N A N C I A L I N F O R M AT I O N / P. 9 0

91

CASH FLOW STATEMENT (EUR) (CONTINUED)
INVESTING CASH FLOW

BALANCE SHEET INDICATORS (EUR)
31/12/2014

31/12/2013

-2,219,566

-4,551,150

Intangible and tangible assets

-961,664

-1,159,955

Financial assets

-1,257,903

-3,391,195

TOTAL INVESTMENTS

-2,219,566

-4,551,150

Disposal of fixed assets

0

1,159,305

Intangible and tangible assets

0

0

Financial assets

0

1,159,305

TOTAL DISPOSALS

0

1,159,305

NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B)

-2,219,566

-3,391,845

FINANCING CASH FLOW

31/12/2014

31/12/2013

Dividends paid to minority interests

0

0

Dividends paid by parent company

0

0

-1,643,849

2,725,282

Increase in capital

0

102,188

CASH FUND (C)

-1,643,849

2,827,470

31/12/2014

31/12/2013

CHANGE IN CASH OVER THE PERIOD (A+B+C)

-818,790

1,712,261

Cash at start of period

2,863,659

1,151,398

Cash at end of period

2,044,869

2,863,659

Acquisitions of fixed assets

Variations of long-term loans et financial debts

BALANCE SHEET INDICATORS

31/12/2014

31/12/2013

-359,111

-521,157

-1%

-2%

4,208,194

4,725,492

12%

14%

10,721,163

10,162,240

31%

30%

-2,144,717

1,066,683

-6%

3%

Cash

2,044,869

2,863,659

Cash net of financial debts

-2,743,472

-3,284,450

Net Working Capital: (Equity + provisions – fixed assets)
% TOTAL BALANCE SHEET

WCR* Broad definition: (current assets – current liabilities)
% TOTAL BALANCE SHEET

WCR* strict definition: (contracts in progress + accounts
receivable – accounts payable – advances received)
% TOTAL BALANCE SHEET

Contracts in progress – advances received on projects
% TOTAL BALANCE SHEET

* Working Capital Requirements
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

Performance indicators for each subsidiary are included in the table below, for companies employing more than 5 workers
as of 31 December 2014*:

NOTE I. LIST OF CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND COMPANIES CONSOLIDATED USING THE EQUITY METHOD
ON 31 DECEMBER 2014 *

Name and address

Consolidation
method

Emakina.BE
Rue Middelbourg 64 A
1170 Brussels
Belgium
BE 0463.478.965

Full

Emakina.CH
Quai du Seujet 16-18
1201 Geneva
Switzerland

Full

Emakina.FR
Rue Atlantis 4
Parc d’Ester BP 26840
87068 Limoges
France

Full

Emakina.NL**
Willem de Zwijgerlaan 350
1055 RD Amsterdam
The Netherlands

Full

Emakina / Insights
Rue Middelbourg 64 A
1170 Brussels
Belgium
BE 0556.801.279
The Reference
Stapelplein 70
9000 Ghent
Belgium
BE 0474.475.203
Design is Dead
Duboisstraat 50
2060 Antwerp
Belgium
BE 0457.419.732
Toy Agency ***
Rue du Bouloi 17
75001 Paris
France
Your Agency
Drève Richelle 161 L1
1410 Waterloo
Belgium
BE 0437.615.005

Holding %

100%

64%

Variation %

0%

12%

Equity

2,232,182

-466,281

EBITDA

-16,646

348,750

Net result

-1,135,458

-69,257

EMAKINA.BE (KEUR)**

Full

54.50%

100%

0%

0%

100%

615,610

3,850,244

9,368

537,273

1,087,494

-2,848

358,333

420,658

-3,032

Full

100%

100%

0%

0%

1,174,516

435,966

721,316

602,932

247,213

375,356

Turnover

8.497

Purchases

-3.924

Purchases

-692

Gross Margin

18.189

Gross Margin

7.805

Cost of staff and consultants

-13.206

Cost of staff and consultants

-5.366

Overhead costs

-4.902

Overhead costs

-1.334

Other operational costs

-98

Other operational costs

EBITDA

-17

EBITDA

1.087

FTE staff

189

FTE staff

101

100%

100%

295,059

240,948

71,388

100%

0%

185,609

161,955

78,206

* Statutory data at 31 December 2014 subject to approval by the boards of directors/management and general meetings of each structure. These statutory results do not take into account the
consolidation method or adjustments but they offer a view of their respective profitability during 2014.

31/12/2014

Turnover

4,772

Purchases

-1,151

Purchases

-1,753

Gross Margin

9,986

Gross Margin

3,019

Cost of staff and consultants

-6,854

Cost of staff and consultants

-1,873

Overhead costs

-2,386

Overhead costs

-787

Other operational costs

-25

Other operational costs

-10

EBITDA

721

EBITDA

349

FTE staff

89

FTE staff

25

31/12/2014

YOUR AGENCY (KEUR)**

31/12/2014

Turnover

4,371

Turnover

1,970

Purchases

-806

Purchases

-857

Gross Margin

3,565

Gross Margin

1,113

Cost of staff and consultants

-2,218

Cost of staff and consultants

-535

Overhead costs

-416

Overhead costs

-740
-4

Other operational costs

0

EBITDA

603

EBITDA

162

FTE staff

35

FTE staff

8

31/12/2014

Turnover

5,643

Purchases

-1,028

Gross Margin

4,614

Cost of staff and consultants

-2,465

**Statutory amounts subject to accounts approval by the boards of directors/management and
the general meetings of shareholders of the respective subsidiaries.

Overhead costs

-1,553

*** Consolidated figures for Emakina.NL and Emakina Turkey.

Other operational costs

-59

EBITDA

537

FTE staff

48

** Company holds 100% of the company Emakina Turkey. The figures above are the consolidated figures of Emakina.NL.
*** Company is 100% owned by Emakina.FR as of 31 December 2014. On 1 January 2015, Emakina.FR absorbed Toy Agency.

EMAKINA.CH (KEUR)**

11,137

EMAKINA.FR (KEUR)**
Full

31/12/2014

-18

Turnover

Other operational costs

Full

31/12/2014***

22.113

DESIGN IS DEAD (KEUR)**
Full

EMAKINA.NL (KEUR)**

Turnover

THE REFERENCE (KEUR)**
100%

31/12/2014

* All subsidiaries except for Emakina / Insights and Toy Agency, have fewer than five employees each.

F I N A N C I A L I N F O R M AT I O N / P. 9 4

95

NOTE VI B. DEFERRED TAXES AND LATENT TAXATION LIABILITIES

NOTE VIII. STATEMENT OF INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
31/12/2014

31/12/2013

Breakdown of liabilities, item 168 - Deferred taxes (under section 129 of the Royal Decree of 30 January 2001)
At the end of the previous year

44,645

77,394

0

0

Regularisation of deferred taxes

-32,577

-32,749

At year end

12,068

44,645

Deferred taxes on activation of acquisition costs

Emakina Group’s deferred tax liabilities regarding (only) capitalisation of costs related to investments in the consolidated accounts.

31/12/2014

31/12/2013

93,041

136,983

0

0

Use of deferred tax

-89,937

-43,942

Transfers

76,032

At year end

79,136

Breakdown of assets, item 291 – Deferred taxes
At the end of the previous year
Activation of deferred tax

CONCESSION,
PATENTS, LICENCES

R&D

GOODWILL

31/12/2014

31/12/2013

31/12/2014

31/12/2013

31/12/2014

31/12/2013

1,814,379

1,544,221

1,875,536

1,713,027

1,240,718

1,072,534

0

0

0

54,593

0

0

Acquisitions

495,720

270,158

55,348

107,916

950,464

168,184

Disposals and retirement (-)

-69,477

0

0

0

0

0

Transfers

323,598

0

346,648

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

-930,369

0

2,564,221

1,814,379

2,277,532

1,875,536

1,260,813

1,240,718

1,240,054

912,261

1,396,756

1,288,243

255,397

127,341

0

0

0

28,726

0

0

Recorded

506,684

327,793

167,161

79,787

258,477

128,056

Cancelled further to disposals and
retirement (-)

-69,477

0

0

0

0

0

Transfers

0

0

284,016

0

0

0

Other

0

0

0

0

0

0

At the end of the financial year

1,677,261

1,240,054

1,847,934

1,396,756

513,874

255,397

D/ NET BOOK VALUE AT THE END OF
THE FINANCIAL YEAR: A – C

886,960

574,325

429,599

478,780

746,938

985,321

A/ ACQUISITION COST
At the end of the previous financial year
Adjustments during the financial year
Additions to scope

Others

At the end of the financial year
C/ AMORTISATION AND WRITE-DOWNS
At the end of the previous financial
year
Adjustments during the financial year:

93,041
Additions to scope

Deferred tax assets recognised in Emakina.NL, corresponding to the balances of tax losses over 5 years.

NOTE VII. STATEMENT OF FORMATION EXPENSES

Net book value at the end of the previous financial year

31/12/2014

31/12/2013

297,600

177,960

Adjustments during the financial year:
New expenses incurred
Amortisation (-)
Change in the scope of consolidation (+)

Net book value at the end of the financial year
Including formation expenses and costs of increasing capital
Of which restructuring costs

1,050

247,099

-103,595

-127,459

0

0

195,055

297,600

1,050

50,501

194,005

247,099
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NOTE IX. STATEMENT OF TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

ANNEXE IX. STATEMENT OF TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

PLANT, MACHINES, EQUIPMENT

LEASING

FURNITURE AND VEHICLES

OTHER FIXED ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS
UNDER CONSTRUCTION

31/12/2014

31/12/2013

31/12/2014

31/12/2013

31/12/2014

31/12/2013

31/12/2014

31/12/2013

31/12/2014

31/12/2013

1,721,014

1,625,043

2,962,935

2,360,883

696,704

696,704

915,466

665,942

323,598

0

873

6,937

24,549

835,640

0

0

0

255,754

0

0

284,102

95,971

0

159,048

0

0

56,841

28,038

62,596

323,598

Disposals and retirement (-)

0

-6,937

-33,173

-392,635

0

0

0

-34,268

0

0

Transfers

0

0

-346,648

0

0

0

0

0

-323,598

0

Other

0

0

-1,714

0

0

0

-99,769

0

0

0

2,005,989

1,721,014

2,605,950

2,962,935

696,704

696,704

872,538

915,466

62,596

323,598

1,400,392

1,127,084

2,451,979

1,971,981

671,425

637,824

611,401

367,004

0

0

36

6,937

11,794

592,395

0

0

0

192,138

0

0

286,009

273,308

114,514

190,349

25,279

33,601

93,393

72,598

0

0

Cancelled further to disposals and
retirement (-)

0

-6,937

-80,444

-302,746

0

0

0

-20,339

0

0

Transfers

0

0

-284,016

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Other

0

0

-1,159

0

0

0

-85,360

0

0

0

1,686,437

1,400,392

2,212,669

2,451,979

696,704

671,425

619,434

611,401

0

0

319,552

320,622

393,281

510,956

0

25,279

253,104

304,065

62,596

323,598

A/ ACQUISITION COST
At the end of the previous financial
year
Adjustments during the year:
Additions to scope
Acquisitions

At the end of the financial year (a)
C/ AMORTISATION AND WRITE-DOWNS
At the end of the previous financial
year
Adjustments during the year:
Additions to scope
Recorded

At the end of the financial year

D/ NET BOOK VALUE AT THE END
OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR: A – C
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NOTE XI. STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED RESERVES

NOTE X. STATEMENT OF TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
31/12/2014

31/12/2013

A. COMPANIES CONSOLIDATED BY THE EQUITY METHOD

CONSOLIDATED RESERVES AT THE END OF THE PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR

1/ Participating interests

Adjustments during the financial year

Net book value at the end of the previous financial year

14,001

12,036

Adjustments during the financial year:
Acquisitions
Deconsolidation

Net book value at the end of the year

Share of the group in the consolidated results
Other variations

0

1,965

-14,001

0

0

14,001

Net book value at the end of the financial year

Net book value at the end of the previous financial year

Acquisitions

50,000

32,519

Disposals

-12,219

0

Write-downs

0

0

Adjustments of write-downs

0

0

74,585

36,804

Net book value at the end of the year

2/ Amounts receivable
Net book value at the end of the previous financial year

215,346

197,054

Adjustments during the financial year:
Additions

17,167

18,292

Reimbursements

0

0

Others

0

0

232,513

215,346

Net book value at the end of the financial year

-2,554,819

-1,132,203

495,635

0

0

-3,191,387

-2,059,184

VARIATIONS DUE
TO A CHANGE IN
THE PERCENTAGE
HELD

AMORTISATION

OTHERS

NET BOOK VALUE
AT THE END OF
FINANCIAL YEAR

Emakina.BE

0

0

0

0

0

Emakina.EU

8,589

504,867

23,035

0

490,421

150,567

0

120,453

0

30,114

2,014,845

0

543,783

0

1,471,063

The Reference

561,922

0

338,174

0

223,748

Emakina Media

463,653

0

60,222

0

403,431

Your Agency

173,577

77,858

37,909

0

213,526

Emakina.UK

27,937

-38,499

-10,562

0

0

Robert & Marien

44,211

0

0

-44,211

0

Emakina.CH

678,683

155,165

117,343

0

716,504

Merge Media

69,884

-74,543

-4,659

0

0

Emakina.NL

2,890,473

9,689

378,839

0

2,521,323

Toy Agency

0

512,594

0

0

512,594

7,084,341

1,147,130

1,604,538

-44,211

6,582,723

4,285

Adjustments during the financial year:

-2,059,184

VALUE AT THE
END OF THE PREVIOUS FINANCIAL
YEAR

EUR
36,804

31/12/2013

NOTE XII. STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATION DIFFERENCES

B. OTHER COMPANIES
1/ Participating interests

31/12/2014

Design is Dead
Emakina.FR

TOTAL

The amount of variation is explained by new acquisitions, additional fees and ancillary costs related to prior acquisitions.
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NOTE XIII. STATEMENT OF CREDITORS

NOTE XV. OFF BALANCE SHEET RIGHTS AND COMMITMENTS

MATURING
IN THE YEAR

> 1 YEAR
AND < 5 YEARS

> 5 YEARS

ITEM 42

ITEM 17

ITEM 17

C

OTHER MAJOR COMMITMENTS
Miscellaneous commitments:

TOTAL

Pledges on goodwill of €504,522

31/12/14

31/12/13

31/12/14

31/12/13

31/12/14

31/12/13

31/12/14

31/12/13

Subordinate loans

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Finance lease liabilities,
finance and similar
obligations

0

0

87,102

132,392

0

0

87,102

132,392

CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

1,320,845

889,396

0

0

1,383,516

1,942,469

2,704,361

2,831,865

0

0

0

111,285

0

0

0

111,285

1,320,845

889,396

87,102

243,677

1,383,516

1,942,469

2,791,463

3,075,542

Rental guarantees of €135,226
Bank guarantees of €113,978
Credit lines of €6,584,000

Major commitments pertaining to participating interests:
Surety of Emakina Group to The Reference (bank): €200,000
Surety of Emakina Group to Emakina.FR (bank): €400,000
Surety of Emakina Group to Emakina.NL (bank): €500,000

Other loans
TOTAL

Corporate guarantees by Emakina Group to Emakina.BE (bank): €1,250,000
Commitment to the minority interests of Emakina.CH and Emakina.NL for redemption of the remaining shares for a variable
amount based on profitability.

NOTE XIV. RESULTS
EXERCICE

EXERCICE PRÉCÉDENT

36,235,267

37,843,253

508

488

0

0

Employees

412

390

Management

21

24

Others

75

74

Total staff (end of period)

538

509

B12.

Personnel costs (heading 62)

25,272,915

23,048,167

B13.

Average number of persons in Belgium
employed by the companies concerned

A
B11.

Group turnover in Belgium (heading 70/4)
Average number of persons employed
Workers

NOTE XVI. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES MADE UNDER CONDITIONS OTHER THAN THOSE OF THE MARKET
There were no transactions to report that were carried out under conditions other than market conditions. However, related
parties do not include companies (almost) entirely owned by the group.

NOTE XVII. FINANCIAL RELATIONS WITH
31/12/2014

31/12/2013

1,269,638

1,229,856

1.1 Fees for the financial year for the auditor's duties

71,000

69,607

1.2 Fees for extraordinary or special services carried out for the group

18,500

37,292

a. Other certification services

2,000

7,000

c. Other services apart from the audit assignment

16,500

30,292

A. DIRECTORS AND MANAGERS OF THE CONSOLIDATING COMPANY
1. T
 otal amount of remuneration granted on account of their responsibilities in the
consolidation enterprise, its subsidiaries and affiliated companies, including the
amounts on same account of retirement pensions granted to former directors
or managers.
B. THE AUDITOR OR AUDITORS AND PERSONS WITH WHOM THEY ARE RELATED

C2.

Other extraordinary expenses (item 664/8)

334

334
1. Auditors’ fees

398,566

43,437

Restructuring costs

195,425

43,437

Closed litigation

198,076

0

5,065

0

Other
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SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED VALUATION
RULES
I - SCOPE AND CONSOLIDATION METHOD
See page 84
II - VALUATION RULES

Non-deductible VAT on vehicles is capitalised.

5. Revenue recognition on contracts in progress (fixed prices)

7. Research and development

Second-hand tangible assets are depreciated on a straight line basis
at a rate between 20% and 50%.

When a group entity takes on a project for which the client
demands a fixed price contract, project managers prepare an
estimate of the budget. An invoicing schedule is established in
the contract and corresponds to milestones for deliverables.
Generally, the pattern is as follows: (i) advance billing, (ii) prototype version, (iii) project release (iv) end of guarantee period.

As part of its business, Emakina conducts research into developing and implementing technology solutions.

Financial assets
Shares and receivables under this heading are carried at acquisition value excluding ancillary costs.

Formation expenses

Receivables on subsidiaries and affiliated companies are listed
under financial assets if the Group intends to support the borrower on a sustainable basis. These receivables are carried on
the balance sheet at their nominal value.

Formation expenses are carried at their acquisition value.
Restructuring costs and Research and Development costs,
excluding those acquired from third parties, are capitalised
at cost.

Investments and shares under this heading are subject to
write-downs in case of durable depreciation justified by the
situation, the profitability or the prospects of the company in
which these investments and shares are held.

1. VALUATION OF ASSETS

Formation costs and capital increase costs are amortised Receivables under this heading are written down if their reimover a period of 5 years using the straight line method.
bursement at due date is fully or partially uncertain or at risk.
Costs related to the IPO are amortised on a straight-line
basis over a period of 8 years. Other costs (SOP and others) Short-term and long-term receivables
are amortised over 5 years using the straight line method. Short-term and long-term receivables are carried at nominal
value and subject to write-downs if their reimbursement at
Goodwill (positive consolidation differences)
due date is fully or partially uncertain or at risk.
Goodwill includes differences between the share of equity of
the consolidated entities and the book value of the investment Investments and cash equivalents
in these entities, which are not allocated to assets and liabilities. Deposits with credit institutions are valued at their nominal
Goodwill is presented on the balance sheet under item III ‘good- value. Foreign currency assets are converted at the exchange
will’ and badwill is presented in liabilities under item V ‘badwill’. rates prevailing at the last day of the financial year. Gains and
losses on foreign currencies are recorded in the statement.
Goodwill is amortised over 8 years. Amortisation is recorded
under financial charges.
2. Valuation of liabilities
Intangible assets

Provisions for liabilities and charges

Intangible assets are capitalised at their acquisition cost or Each year, the board of directors evaluates the necessary proproduction cost.
visions prudently and in good faith. These provisions are based
on the individual nature of the risks and charges that they are
The following amortisation rates are applied:
intended to cover. The provisions are reversed insofar as they
•
research and development costs prorated linear method, exceed the year-end evaluation of the risks and charges that
rate: 25%;
they were intended to cover.
•

patents, concessions and licenses prorated linear method,
Short-term and long-term debts
rate: 20%;

•

software prorated linear method, rate: 33%;

•

goodwill prorated linear method, rate: 12.5%.

Tangible assets

Debts are carried at nominal value. The obligations arising from
financial leasing or similar contracts on tangible assets owned
by the company are recognised as a liability at an amount equal
to the sum of the contractual lease payments.

Tangible assets are capitalised at acquisition cost, or produc- 3. Revaluation
tion cost. Costs attributable to assets are expensed during the Fixed assets, investments and shares included under financial
financial year.
assets are not subject to revaluation.
Tangible assets are amortised on the prorated straight line
basis. For fixed assets, depreciation rates used are as follows: 4. Foreign currencies
•

installations, facilities and fixtures between 5 and 20%;

•

machinery and equipment from 20 to 33%;

•

furniture between 20 and 33%;

•

office equipment from 20 to 33%;

•

computer equipment between 20 and 33%;

•

vehicles from 20 to 25%.
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Receivables and payables in foreign currencies are carried at
the exchange rate prevailing at the transaction dates. They are
converted at the end of the period at the closing rate, unless
they are specifically hedged. Exchange rate losses arising from
this revaluation are recognised in the income statement and
exchange rate gains are recognised on the balance sheet as
deferred income.

Contracts in progress are estimated according to the stage of
completion of the project (recognition of income including
margin according to percentage of completion). As a result,
based on accounting principles used by the group, contracts in
progress are recorded under assets under construction when
the percentage of completion is higher than the invoicing
schedule and under advances received (liabilities) when the
invoicing schedule is ahead of the percentage of completion.
If one or more of the accounting policies mentioned here is
no longer valid, changes will be made, and the reasons for
these changes and their impact on the financial statement
included in the annual report.
6. Deferred taxes
Deferred tax liabilities:
When necessary, deferred tax liabilities are recognised and
calculated at the tax rate expected to apply when the temporary differences no longer exist, and to the extent that actual
taxation will occur.
Deferred tax assets:
The group recognises deferred tax assets (on unused tax losses
carried forward) in its consolidated financial statements to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which these unused tax losses carried forward can be used.

The company’s board of directors decided in its meeting in
December 2011, to authorise funding for research and development in specific cases:
•

only for R&D projects representing an investment of more
than EUR 50,000. These projects must also be supported
by a subsidy from a public body;

•

on an actual cost basis (to the extent that it does not exceed
a cautious estimate of the value of using these assets or
their future profitability for the company), and amortised
on a straight line basis over 3 years;

•

through the item ‘Capitalised Production’ in the consolidated results.

F I N A N C I A L I N F O R M AT I O N / P. 1 0 4

105

STATUTORY ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
OF EMAKINA GROUP AT 31
DECEMBER 2014

LIABILITIES (EUR)

CODES

31/12/2014

31/12/2013

EQUITY

10/15

15,837,233

14,412,001

Capital

10

9,229,661

9,229,661

100

9,229,661

9,229,661

Share premium account

11

3,101,458

3,101,458

Reserves

13

365,417

225,048

Legal reserve

130

238,809

167,548

Unavailable reserves for own shares

1310

74,998

5,890

Available reserves

133

51,610

51,610

Profit carried forward

14

3,140,697

1,855,834

PROVISIONS AND DEFERRED TAXES

16

0

0

17/49

3,762,467

4,217,795

Debts payable after one year

17

1,095,815

1,521,286

Debts payable within the year

42/48

2,656,727

2,600,670

Subscribed Capital

The statutory annual accounts of Emakina Group are presented The statutory accounts only reflect the accounting position of
in a condensed version after appropriation of the 2014 income. the parent company, as a holding company. These accounts
Pursuant to the Companies Code, the complete annual accounts are not a reflection of the group’s activity.
and auditor’s report are filed at the National Bank of Belgium.

STATUTORY BALANCE SHEET ESTABLISHED ACCORDING TO BELGIAN ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (BELGIAN GAAP) AFTER APPROPRIATION

AMOUNTS PAYABLE

CODES

31/12/2014

31/12/2013

Current portion of debts payable after one year

42

425,471

421,765

20/28

16,745,102

15,191,223

Financial debts

43

1,044,191

800,000

Formation expenses

20

0

37,958

Trade debts

44

753,001

643,614

Intangible assets

21

457,048

505,251

440/4

753,001

643,614

Tangible assets

22/27

32,817

42,156

Advance payments received

46

0

0

Financial assets

28

16,255,237

14,605,858

Taxes, wages and social security

45

70,499

44,875

280/1

16,203,021

14,472,754

1. Taxes

450/3

8,320

15,898

Participating interests

280

15,843,914

14,193,646

2. Wages and social security

454/9

62,179

28,977

Amounts receivable

281

359,107

279,108

47/48

363,565

690,416

282/3

0

100,940

Accrued charges and deferred income

492/3

9,925

95839

282

0

100,940

TOTAL LIABILITIES

10/49

19,599,700

18,629,796

284/8

52,215

32,164

284

24,285

3,985

285/8

27,930

28,179

29/58

2,854,598

3,438,573

Amounts receivable after one year

29

0

0

Contracts in progress

3

0

0

40/41

2,515,687

3,193,942

Trade debtors

40

813,336

1,864,167

Other amounts receivable

41

1,702,351

1,329,775

50/53

74,998

5,890

50

74,998

5,890

51/53

0

0

Cash at bank and in hand

54/58

150,386

165,387

Accrued income and deferred charges

490/1

113,527

73,354

TOTAL ASSETS

20/58

19,599,700

18,629,796

ASSET (EUR)
FIXED ASSETS

Affiliated Enterprises

Other enterprises linked by a participating interest
Participating interests

Other financial assets
Participating interests
Guarantees

CURRENT ASSETS

Amounts receivable within one year

Current investments
Own shares
Other investments

1. Suppliers

Other debts
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STATUTORY INCOME STATEMENT ESTABLISHED ACCORDING TO BELGIAN ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (BELGIAN GAAP)
CODES

31/12/2014*

31/12/2013

Profit (loss) to be appropriated

9906

3,281,066

1,873,224

3,703,013

Profit (loss) to be appropriated

9905

1,425,232

347,798

117,456

201,968

Profit (loss) brought forward

14P

1,855,834

1,525,426

60/64

4,337,620

4,303,506

Transfers to capital and reserves

691/2

140,369

17,390

60

249,000

204,058

To legal reserve

6920

71,262

17,390

600/8

249,000

204,058

To available reserves

6920

69,107

0

Services and other goods

61

3,484,755

2,952,403

14

3,140,697

1,855,834

Wages, social security and pensions

62

290,671

239,461

694/6

0

0

Depreciation / write-downs on formation expenses, intangible and
tangible fixed assets

630

313,194

923,502

694

0

0

640/8

0

-15,918

Operating profit

9901

90,996

-398,525

Financial income

75

1,765,053

923,498

Income from financial fixed assets

750

355,605

893,711

Income from current assets

751

1,821

18,482

752/9

1,407,628

11,305

Financial expenses

65

144,169

49,420

Debt charges

650

127,806

42,440

652/9

16,362

6,980

9902

1,711,881

475,553

Extraordinary income

76

0

0

Extraordinary expenses

66

287,012

127,755

Write-downs on financial fixed assets

661

0

7,500

Loss on the disposal of fixed assets

663

190,801,37

0

664/8

96,210,32

120,255

Profit for the year before tax

9903

1,424,869

347,798

Income taxes

67/77

363

0

77

363

0

9904

1,425,232

347,798

INCOME STATEMENT (EUR)

CODES

31/12/14

31/12/13

70/74

4,428,616

3,904,981

Turnover

70

4,311,160

Other operating income

74

Sales and services

Cost of sales and services
Raw materials and goods for resale
Purchases

Other operating charges

Other financial income

Other financial expenses

Current profit before tax

Other extraordinary expenses

Tax adjustments and write-backs of tax provisions

Profit for the year

APPROPRIATION OF RESULT (EUR)

Profit (loss) to be carried forward
Profit to be distributed
Dividends

* Proposal submitted to the general meeting of shareholders on 22 April 2015.
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AUDITOR’S
REPORT
STATUTORY AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS OF
EMAKINA GROUP FOR THE YEAR ENDING
31 DECEMBER 2014

We do not need to report any transactions undertaken An audit also includes assessing the appropriateness of accountor of decisions taken in violation of the constitution or ing policies used, whether significant accounting estimates
Companies Code.
made by the group are reasonable, and the presentation of the
consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole.
Diegem, 30 March 2015
Ernst & Young Réviseurs d’Entreprises (statutory auditors) SCCRL We have obtained the necessary explanations and information
Auditor represented by Eric Golenvaux, Partner
from the board of directors and the group’s officials in order to
conduct our audit procedures. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate as a reasonable
STATUTORY AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
basis for our opinion.

•

by the management body, and the presentation of the annual
accounts, taken as a whole.

We have obtained the necessary explanations and information
to execute our audit procedures from the board of directors
and the group’s officials. We believe that the audit evidence
In accordance with legal requirements, this report fulfils our we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate as a reasonable
mandate as statutory auditor. It contains our opinion on the basis for our opinion.
balance sheet at 31 December 2014, the income statement for
the year ended December 31 2014 and the appendices that Unqualified opinion
together make up the ‘annual accounts’, as well as our report In our opinion, the company’s annual accounts for the financial
on other legal and regulatory requirements.
year ending 31 December 2014 give a true and fair view of the
UNQUALIFIED OPINION ON THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
We have audited the annual accounts of the limited company
Emakina Group (‘the company’) for the year ending 31 December 2014, prepared in accordance with the financial reporting
framework applicable in Belgium. These show a balance sheet
total of €19,599,700 and income statement total profit for the
year of €1,425,232.

group’s financial position and assets in accordance with the
financial reporting framework applicable in Belgium.
REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY
OBLIGATIONS

The management body is responsible for the preparation and
contents of the management report on the annual accounts,
pursuant to section 96 of the Companies Code and in compliance
with legal and regulatory provisions applicable to bookkeeping,
Responsibility of the management body for the preparation the Companies Code and statutes of the company.
of the annual accounts
As part of our audit and according to the complementary
The management body is responsible for preparing annual standards issued by the Institute of Business Auditors (l’Institut
accounts that give a true and fair view, in accordance with des Réviseurs d’Entreprises), as published in the Moniteur Belaccounting principles applicable in Belgium. This includes ge of 28 August 2013 (the ‘Complementary Standards’), our
conceiving, drawing up and maintaining internal controls for responsibility is to perform certain procedures, in all significant
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that aspects, respecting certain legal and regulatory obligations, as
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or defined by the Complementary Standards. Based on the outerror; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; come of these proceedings, we make the following additional
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the statements, which do not modify the scope of our opinion on
circumstances.
the annual accounts:
Responsibility of the statutory auditor

•

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these annual accounts based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing (‘ISAs’). Those standards
mean that we must comply with ethical requirements, and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that the
annual accounts include no significant anomalies.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the annual accounts. The
choice of procedures implemented depends on the judgment of
the auditor, including assessing the risk that financial statements
contain material misstatement, whether through fraud or error. In •
making this risk assessment, the auditor considers the company’s
internal controls relevant to the preparation of accounts giving a
true and fair view, to define audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, and not for the purpose of expressing an
•
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of valuation rules, the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
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the management report on the annual accounts deals
with particulars required by law, consistent with the annual
accounts, and does not include significant inconsistencies with the information which we acquired during our
mandate. However, we are not able to express an opinion
on the description of the principal risks and uncertainties
that the company is facing, and of its situation, foreseeable
changes or the significant influence of certain facts on its
future development. We can nevertheless confirm that
the matters disclosed do not present any obvious inconsistencies with the information that we became aware of
during the performance of our mandate;
Without prejudice to formal aspects of minor importance,
the accounting records have been maintained in accordance with legal and regulatory requirements applicable
in Belgium;
The appropriation of results proposed to the General
Meeting complies with legal and statutory provisions;

GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS OF
EMAKINA GROUP FOR THE YEAR ENDING
31 DECEMBER 2014

Unqualified Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of the Group
at December 31 2014 give a true and fair view of the assets and
the financial situation of the consolidated whole, as well as the
consolidated results for the financial year ending on this date,
in accordance with accounting principles that apply in Belgium.

In accordance with legal requirements, this report fulfils our
mandate as statutory auditor. It contains our opinion on the
annual accounts at 31 December 2014, the income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2014, and the appendices
(that together make up the ‘consolidated financial statement’),
as well as our report on other legal and regulatory obligations. REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY
OBLIGATIONS
UNQUALIFIED OPINION ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management body is responsible for the preparation and
contents of the management report on the consolidated financial
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of statements, pursuant to section 119 of the Companies Code.
Emakina Group (the ‘company’) and its subsidiaries for the As part of our audit and according to the complementary
year ending 31 December 2014, prepared in accordance with standards issued by the Institute of Business Auditors (l’Institut
the financial reporting framework applicable in Belgium. These des Réviseurs d’Entreprises), as published in the Moniteur Belshow a consolidated balance sheet total of €34,936,496 for the ge of 28 August 2013 (the ‘Complementary Standards’), our
financial year and a loss, for the group, of €1,132,150.
responsibility is to perform certain procedures, in all significant
aspects, respecting certain legal and regulatory obligations, as
Responsibility of the board of directors for the preparation defined by the Complementary Standards. Based on the outand fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements come of these proceedings, we make the following additional
The management body is responsible for the preparation and statements, which do not modify the scope of our opinion on
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements, ac- the annual accounts:
cording to Belgian accounting norms. This includes conceiving, •
drawing up and maintaining internal controls for the preparation
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.
Responsibility of the statutory auditor

the management report on the consolidated financial
statements deals with particulars required by law, consistent
with the consolidated financial statements, and does not
include significant inconsistencies with the information
which we acquired during our mandate. However, we are
not able to express an opinion on the description of the
principal risks and uncertainties that the company is facing,
and of its situation, foreseeable changes or the significant
influence of certain facts on its future development. We
can nevertheless confirm that the matters disclosed do not
present any obvious inconsistencies with the information
that we became aware while we carried out our mandate.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (‘ISAs’). Those standards mean that we must comply with Diegem, 30 March 2015
ethical requirements, and plan and perform the audit to obtain Ernst & Young Réviseurs d’Entreprises (statutory auditors) SCCRL
reasonable assurance that the annual accounts include no Auditor represented by Eric Golenvaux, Partner
significant anomalies.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The choice of procedures implemented
depends on the judgment of the auditor, including assessing
the risk that financial statements contain material misstatement,
whether through fraud or error. In making this risk assessment,
the auditor considers the company’s internal controls relevant to
the preparation of accounts giving a true and fair view, to define
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, and
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal controls.
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DECLARATION
FROM THE DIRECTORS
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SHARE PRICE
FLUCTUATION IN 2014
PRICE (IN EUR)

Brice Le Blévennec et Karim Chouikri, joint Chief Executives
and managing directors of Emakina Group, as well as Denis
Steisel, president of the company’s board of directors declare
that to the best of their knowledge, the consolidated financial
statements closed at 31 December 2014 and the (statutory)
annual accounts closed at 31 December 2014, established in
accordance with Belgian GAAP, give a true and fair view of
the assets, financial status and results of Emakina Group. In
addition, the 2014 management report contains an accurate
description of the information that it needs to include.

EUR
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OUR MISSION
We developed a fresh-feeling e-commerce platform
to inspire RITUALS fans around the world. Now,
visitors can order their favourite products in a few
clicks via their computer, mobile or tablet.

RITUALS

DISCOVER…

Your daily rituals
start online

RITUALS products help you take a little more care of
yourself by transforming mundane daily routines into
genuine moments of pleasure. On the site, you can
discover the wealth of history behind each RITUALS
collection, and the traditions, wisdom and myths that
inspired them. Finally, you can order every product
or collection in the range with a few simple clicks.

IT’S ALL ABOUT THE LITTLE THINGS
(AND LOTS OF THEM…)

Services: Web design
Information architecture
Applications / e-commerce
Content platform / Hosting
solutions / User experience
BRIEF
To create a new e-commerce platform that would
give visitors from around the world the impression
of walking through a RITUALS store. The challenge
was to achieve this within three months, during a
busy, pre-holiday period.

•

There are more than 600 products available
in the online shop, from body and face care
to clothes. It also offers scented candles, fine
fragrances, make-up and even tea.

•

The site is available in three languages and is
accessible from 16 European countries.

•

RITUALS’ platform was designed so that it can
easily be rolled out to other countries outside
Europe.

A P P E N D I C E S / P. 1 1 6
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CHALLENGE

TECHNOLOGY

Our main challenge was to develop a platform to tell
the story of RITUALS products while also satisfying
the demands of the business, including the needs
of the marketing team, business analysts, content
and product managers, developers and designers.

RITUALS’ e-commerce platform is based on Demandware
software. This means that it is a scalable e-commerce platform
that can support different channels and brands at the same
time. It is the ideal option for large companies that may wish
to expand their selection. Online developments mean that
retail software can be adapted quickly and accurately, while
still ensuring data is secure. Demandware offers an excellent
level of support and flexibility to achieve this.

So we created an international e-commerce platform,
available in different languages, while also allowing
each country to employ its own methods of payment.
In addition, the site also fulfils the requirements of
national legislation, such as the information that must
be declared for each product in different countries.
A platform for e-commerce will see many different
user journeys. So our platform optimises the journey
for each specific kind of customer.

PERFORMANCE
Reporting & Analytics:
We rely on reports and analysis, and this crucial feedback allows
us to develop our platforms. It helps us understand what is going
on, and how behaviour varies amongst different sub-sections
of site visitors. We evaluate the acquisition of traffic and overall
site performance using periodic statistical analysis and reports.
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KARL LAGERFELD
The digital orchestration of a brand, as
well as a state of mind
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Services: Strategy / Web design
Information architecture / Brand
experience / Creative consultancy
Direct marketing / Mobile development
Social media / User experience
Video production

DIGITAL DNA
The famed fashion designer who popularised the concept of
‘masstige’, Karl Lagerfeld brought together mass consumption
and prestige by launching a brand exclusively on the Internet.
Karl Lagerfeld has collaborated with brands as diverse as Coca
Cola Light, H&M, Mattel and Volkswagen, yet retained his image
as a visionary creator, always leading the way and constantly
reinventing himself.
Understanding the consumer craze for luxury online, Karl Lagerfeld targeted the general public and people who wanted
perfection but also accessibility. To meet this challenge, the
creator and his marketing agency needed to bring on- and off
line communities together, reconciling the digital and physical
world and introducing the geek to the chic.
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CHALLENGE

LAUNCH

COMMUNITY BUILDING

The meeting points between Karl Lagerfeld and the
communities who inspire him needed to be rich,
intense and spontaneous, so we wanted to organise some very special events and soirées. The Karl
brand combines the designer’s passion for modern
design and the Apple products that he uses himself
to design and create. The prolific creator wanted to
offer collections via the internet, plus also a series of
encounters between consumers and his creative side.
So his launches and development events needed
to attract both fashionistas and digital communities
through ambitious installations combining digital
elements, street marketing and ‘happenings’.

At the opening of the LeWeb 2011 conference, the largest digital gathering
in the calendar, Karl Lagerfeld and Emakina announced the upcoming
launch of his new line of clothing and accessories – sending his name
buzzing across social networks.

To launch a premium brand in the 21st century means building it around the beating heart of digital. So the designer and
Emakina put in play different points of contact and communities
that already had groups of spontaneous fans. By structuring
the designer’s community through social networks such as
Facebook, Twitter, YouTube and Instagram, the agency had
connected up a public of millions. Today, more than one
million people follow Karl Lagerfeld and read the news about
his brand and his many collaborations.

The collection would be available exclusively on the online sales site
net-a-porter.com, a luxury e-commerce platform par excellence. It
would then be revealed in five pop-up stores equipped with a mobile
augmented reality application, in the cities of Paris, New York, London,
Berlin and Sydney.
During the 2012 fashion week, the brand organised a private launch dinner
bringing together the crème de la crème of global fashion names. These
guests viewed the collection on a custom-made Emakina app installed
on special iPads engraved with the profile of Karl Lagerfeld. This was
one of the first times that the Apple brand agreed for its logo to be used
alongside that of the internationally-renowned designer.

While most fashion brands think about their distribution channel first, the Karl Lagerfeld brand re-invented itself by making
retail, the internet architecture, social media and the brand
direction work together.

IN-STORE LAUNCH
Karl Lagerfeld and Emakina dreamed up a series
of digital innovations for concept stores kitted out
under the designer’s artistic direction. Designed for
21st-century visitors, this unique boutique network
is like a platform where customers, the brand and
communities of fans and inspirations can interact.
Each store offers visitors a genuine, immersive
experience at the heart of Karl Lagerfeld’s universe.
During 2013 fashion week, we managed a perfectly-integrated launch on social media networks – with
teasers posted on Twitter, Facebook and Instagram –
and a blogger event where these fans could discover
the shop and take part in the in-store experience.
The opening night was broadcast on the brand’s
Facebook page and the karl.com site. The designer
also responded to questions from the Twitter community via live tweets sent out from the @Karllagerfeld
account and to the livestream camera.
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The most exciting part of this new
opening is that the store will also
double as a virtual window to Karl
Lagerfeld himself.

KARL’S BOOTH
A touch screen in every dressing room allows customers to
immortalise their look with a photo, apply a filter ‘in the style
of Karl’, and share this with their friends.

KARL’S BOOK
Visitors are invited to share their impressions, write about how
they feel about the brand, or simply leave a message for the
designer on the in-store digital GuestBook. They can also surf
the karl.com website, take pictures of their favourite products
and share all of these experiences on social networks.

Trend Hunter

THE KOLLECTION
Mini iPads are interspersed with the clothing racks to offer visitors a chance to explore all of the looks from the collection.
They can take their time to browse through everything and
share what their heart most desires with their social networks.

KARL STORE WORLDWIDE
Since February 2013, Karl Lagerfeld and Emakina have rolled out more than 10
shops worldwide. So you can enjoy the Karl Lagerfeld digital retail experience in
international cities including Paris, Beijing, Berlin, Shanghai, Amsterdam, St. Petersburg, Antwerp and Istanbul.

AWARDS
In 2013, Karl Lagerfeld and Emakina won the top prize in the retail category at the
Grand Prix Stratégies / Amaury Medias du Luxe contest, as well as an award for
Best New Store / Refit from WGSN, a world authority on style and design which
organises the Global Fashion Awards.
These awards were a well-deserved accolade for the digital strategy at Karl Lagerfeld’s
new concept stores.
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THE STRATEGY
To increase customer numbers and direct sales in remote areas,
Emakina worked with Tesco Kipa to create a new, responsive
e-commerce site. We also built a powerful online marketing
strategy, good infrastructure and introduced SEO techniques.
To offer a wider range of products, we introduced integration
with certain supplier sites. Emakina also worked on increasing
brand awareness by boosting the number of visitors and use
of the site and sales.

STRUCTURE
To create the best return on investment for Tesco Kipa and
the best user experience for its customers, we made it easy
to search for and find products, encouraging people to go
through with purchases rather than abandoning their basket.
These priorities guided our site map, navigation style, and
user-oriented directions on all platforms.

KIPADIREKT

Information
Architecture

SEO

New e-commerce
platform

Services: e-commerce
Mobile Development / Consultancy
Web design / Strategy

DESIGN & RESPONSIVENESS
We invested great time and effort in ensuring kipadirekt.com is attractively designed and easy to use.
Products are carefully laid out on a grid, the colours
are harmonious, and the page also has a lively and
attractive feel. The responsive design adapts to a
visitor’s behaviour and the layout adapts to the size
of a user’s screen, orientation and platform.

CLIENT
Kipa is one of the market leaders in Turkish retail, with
200 supermarkets and more than 9,600 employees.
The company belongs to Tesco, a multinational
company that operates grocery stores and sells
retail goods, with headquarters in the UK.

Brand
awareness

Responsive

Tesco operates in 13 countries, has millions of customers and is one of the world’s top three retailers.

BRIEF

TECHNOLOGY

RESULTS

Kipa already had a brilliant e-commerce strategy in
Turkey that aimed to reach consumers through a
high quality, reactive website.

The site was developed on Magento (an
open source platform that is particularly
suited to e-commerce), with a number
of customised modules and the scope
to develop new functions. We exploited
the full potential of HTML5 to create a
completely interactive website. We also
used Amazon Web Services for the best
site performance.

Emakina developed the kipadirekt.com in fewer
than 10 weeks to meet all of the company’s needs
and objectives. The Tesco Kipa site offers a faster
shopping experience (anytime, anywhere), reaching more customers and selling a wider range of
products. In just a short amount of time, Kipa has
already increased sales and web traffic to its site.

The company decided to go even further in the digital
world, and turned to Emakina to create a new digital
experience at kipadirekt.com, the site where Tesco
Kipa stores sell non-food products online.
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VW DRIVES MUSIC
Share a road trip with
other music lovers
WHO’S DRIVING HOME? THE
EASIEST WAY TO GET ABOUT
Our challenge was to create a platform for consumers to share lifts to events in their quality cars,
accessible in three languages and primed and ready
for the summer months.
The service needed to be quick to understand, easy
to use and capable of throwing up speedy results.
So we created a 3 step process (Meet, Drive, Party)
for fans who want to get out and about in shared
transport.

PROFILE CARD AND BADGES

Users can easily register as a driver or as a passenger looking
for a car, do their research on journeys and communicate with
other drivers or passengers about upcoming events.
Thanks to the fully integrated Google Maps function, users
can also find their way more easily!
There is also a chat function and a fun badge-based ranking
system for drivers, cars and passengers.

Services: Web design / Information
architecture / Applications / Direct
marketing / Mobile development
User experience / Web building

BACKGROUND
The Volkswagen strategy is based on the ‘Think Blue’ concept
– a new way of positioning the manufactuer as sustainable and
environmentally friendly.
In Belgium, VW has historically created strong links with young
people, culture, music festivals and concerts in general.

A P P E N D I C E S / P. 1 2 8

CREATING A COMMUNITY
PLATFORM AND KEEPING PEOPLE
ON BOARD
We came up with a complete, easy-to-use service
that is invaluable to users, with reservation management, modification and cancellation features,
messaging, alerts and reminders. It’s also a valuable
investment for VW, because it incorporates a customer relationship management system and data
collection facilities.

LOTS OF SUPPORT
.Net
API

Web Services

CRM

Mobile Apps

Our custom made, high functioning work platform has
a responsive design and includes a.NET framework,
web services, CRM, API and mobile applications for
iOS and Android.
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EFFICIENT LONG TERM
THROUGH EASY
ADMINISTRATION
In addition to being very user-friendly,
Emakina’s system is easy for VW managers
to administer in the long term. There’s a
simple set of moderation tools for the
administrator to manage the site, as well as
an option that merges duplicate requests.
Sophisticated reporting tools make it easy
to identify areas for improvement in the
future – just like a well-serviced engine.
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FIVB
The international governing body for
volleyball and beach volleyball

Services: Strategy / Information
architecture / User experience
Web building / Video production

BACKGROUND
With the 2014 world volleyball championships coming
up, FIVB wanted to bring media attention to volleyball,
presenting it as a truly spectacular sport. This was no
small challenge!

CHALLENGE
CLIENT
Every four years, the FIVB organises the
male and female world volleyball championships, which are followed by millions
of viewers and Internet users.

Emakina needed to create a unique volleyball experience that would be live for fans around the world.
We focused on:
•

transforming a labyrinthine website into an easily‑
navigable site;

•

improving the brand experience at the male and
female championships;

•

delivering a live experience that would compensate for the fact that people would not be able to
watch a match once it had been played.
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LIVE EXPERIENCE

STATISTICS AND PHOTOS – LIVE

Imagine if any fan could connect from anywhere, at any time,
to follow a favourite volleyball team – even while on the move.

We used a ‘Live Updates’ technical tool, plus various
interfaces to keep fans informed about the games
via streaming, photo sharing and statistics.

During the 2014 world volleyball championships, fans could
follow the match live via the tournament’s “Match Centre”,
with unlimited access to scores, comments, photo galleries
and statistics.

A personalised system made these innovative and
exciting techniques possible.
LIVE COMMENTS

LIVE PHOTOS

LIVE STATISTICS

LIVE RESULTS

SCORES AND COMMENTARY AT THE SAME TIME
Fans and technical teams could follow the matches live too,
and provide instant feedback.
Journalists and photographers in particular commented on
matches, and could upload their summaries and photos.
Meanwhile, scores and statistics were updated while the events
were still going on.
This new live experience massively increased the levels of
engagement and interaction with volleyball fans.
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29 MILLION
VIEWS

9 MILLION
SESSIONS

USER EXPERIENCE AND DESIGN
SITEMAP IN DIAGRAM
We needed to make it easy to access a mountain of information. And our architecture was also designed to take into
account each different audience: the fans, media and national
federations.
USER JOURNEY

9 MILLION
USERS

You can access the content by searching for a team, match,
schedule, or country… or simply browse the site.
We built two identical sites for the male and female championships, available in English and in the language of the host
country. These sites provided all contextual information, news
on players, meetings, host countries, volleyball as well as containing press kits, information for purchasing tickets, and more.

A TECHNICAL CHALLENGE?
Even greater than the challenge posed by the amount of
information the site contained, our real technical challenge
was to connect the live game updates with the volleyball
information system (VIS) which had been developed by FIVB
20 years before.
•

Each site is built with Sitecore CMS and NET.

•

Its mobile application is native iOS.

•

It also integrates third-party solutions including Spredfast,
Brightcove and Gigapixel.

These technical solutions helped us develop reactive sites for
each tournament and an iOS app for iPad and iPhone.

LIVE CYCLE
Throughout each competition, we made continuous updates
or even new versions of the site to keep up with the editorial calendar. To manage this pace and continue to meet all
emerging needs, we used the Scrum methodology.

RESULTS
The application was downloaded 51,882 times – surely making
it an ace.
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Services: Strategy / Web design / Information
architecture / Applications / Creative consultancy
Content platform / Media planning / Social media
Video production / Web building / Campaign
ENTER ‘CAMPAIGN DOCTORS’ DESIGN IS DEAD
The ‘Zorg & Gezondheid’ Flemish healthcare agency has a mission to fight against
trivialisation of the use of soft drugs. So how should it challenge misconceptions
about this subject, without seeming cheesy or condescending? How could it attract
the attention of young people and get them into a conversation? The answer was
Design is Dead’s ‘Don’t be duped’ (‘Laat je niet vangen’) campaign.

CATCHING FISH IN TROUBLED WATERS
In Flanders, there aren’t many Facebook pages created as part of government
campaigns targeting 16-25 year olds. And there are even fewer that actually reach
a young audience via this channel. But the maxim of Design is Dead is to dare to
be inspiring. Its creative and communications experts never shrink from a challenge, they question everything and everyone, pushing the public to listen, think
and get involved.

LIKE GOLDFISH, CANNABIS USERS ARE SWIMMING
IN CIRCLES
Every cannabis user is like a fish in a jar. Trapped there, he or she can only go round
in circles. Unable to communicate with the outside world, these people tend to
forget everything after only a few seconds. So how did this funny little fish get here?
How was it hooked?
This was the idea on which our campaign was based, but it was presented as a
general knowledge quiz for young people about life and cannabis. It presents
statements that seem scientifically correct, but in fact are very debatable – and the
campaign’s intelligent visuals support this message.

A COMPREHENSIVE CAMPAIGN
Design is Dead’s bold strategy convinced the Flemish government agency and
the team was able to get to work. After creating and testing different designs and
formats, the agency launched a website and a print campaign focusing on outlets
popular with young audiences. So our funny little fish appeared in advertisements
in magazines and on posters, on trams and radio spots.

MOTTO:
DON’T BE DUPED
Belgium’s ‘Soins & Sante’ healthcare
agency challenges myths around soft drugs

The Flemish Ministry of Health launched the campaign at a widely-reported press
conference. Then we managed a constant presence on social media, such as daily
posts on the Facebook page, to broaden the campaign and attract the attention
of the target audience.
The site ‘Don’t be duped’ (‘Laat je niet vangen’) was at the heart of the campaign.
Just as in the print and online advertising, it featured a fun quiz challenging people
to identify the hidden truths in ideas about cannabis use. The website was also
stocked with accurate information, referring people directly to other organisations
for further help and advice.
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MYTH OR REALITY?
The aim of the campaign was to generate discussion and reaction,
while generating traffic to the website. Mission accomplished:
•

60% of the youngest people in the target group saw the
campaign;

•

Six in 10 young people thought that it was a good campaign; only 10% thought it had little impact;

•

40% admitted that it motivated them to think about the
consequences of cannabis use;

•

Following the campaign, one in four young people talked
about the use of cannabis with friends or family;

•

Within our target group, 44% of cannabis users felt that the
campaign was credible, despite some violent discussions
and reactions on the Facebook page.

‘Don’t be duped’ has become one of the most successful
Facebook-oriented campaigns ever launched by the Flemish
government. More than 50,000 young people ‘liked’ the page
in less than six months and it sparked a real debate on cannabis.
Thousands of young people visited the website and a large
number took part in the quiz and shared their results on social
media, giving the topic even more visibility.
But the most important achievement was that for some people,
this was not just a game. They started to think, without being
forced, and the campaign succeeded in challenging some of
their beliefs around cannabis in an intelligent way.

Do your nails keep growing after you
have died?
Is dishonesty genetic?
Has every adult tried cannabis at least
once?
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OZ
Welcome to OZ, the health
insurance fund that offers its
customers the very best digital
experience.

Services: Strategy / Web design
Information architecture
Applications / Content platform
Hosting solutions / Integrated
campaigns / Media planning
Search marketing and analysis
Social media / User experience
Consultancy / Web building

een slimme zet

AN AMBITIOUS INTEGRATED STRATEGY
OZ is a completely independent health insurance fund. It
brings together several bodies that offer different services. The
collaboration allows the fund to offer a comprehensive set of
complementary services, for example, promoting good health
and offering travel, home help and child care assistance. The
organisation focuses on good health, life, work and its customers’ well-being, allowing it to offer them the best service. With
this in mind, it has made digital a strategic priority since 2011.

CHALLENGE: BUILDING THE BRAND’S
DIGITAL PRESENCE
OZ clearly needed to develop a strong online presence. The
organisation wanted a powerful communication tool, a modular
platform that would stand the test of time, and fulfil a strong
marketing and customer service role. The Reference, which
specialises in integrated marketing across all channels, was
delighted to take up this challenge.

WELCOME TO THE OZ ONLINE SHOP
Afer putting in place a solid strategic plan, we opted for a powerful content management system (CMS) to form the basis of
the new OZ.be website. This site contains everything you need
to know about the company’s wide range of services, through
ergonomic and clearly-presented pages. The site feels intuitive
to surf for information, and customers have direct access to
their own online shop (an extranet).

For visitors looking to compare prices, the site has a comparison
tool to compare the service with other providers. People can
find out quickly about everything OZ can offer them, according
to their specific family situation, and calculate how much they
could save by switching.

STELLAR USER ENGAGEMENT VIA
SITECORE
This project really needed a flexible content management
system, offering easy access to different divisions of OZ. So we
chose the Sitecore Experience Platform, with special ‘landing
pages’ for mobile visitors. This provides a better customer
focus and the entire site offers a personal and well-integrated
service that takes the company’s marketing to a higher level.
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REVVING UP THE SEARCH ENGINES
We modified the content management system to
ensure it would be picked up by search engines
(search engine optimisation, or SEO) and did detailed
‘keyword research’ to ensure that anyone interested
in the subject would quickly find the site. By using
Google Analytics across all devices and social
monitoring, we tracked how customers were using
different digital channels.
Our search engine advertising (SEA) and social media
specialists are in charge of OZ digital promotion
campaigns, ensuring they complement other media promotions. We also worked with an expert in
e-business and campaign manager from our team
of strategy wizards. Together with people from
OZ, this team worked on creating the best possible
customer experience.
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CLOUD HOSTING:
CHEAPER AND BETTER

TAKING THE DIGITAL STEP
TOGETHER

We advised OZ to go for hosting on Windows Azure, the Microsoft cloud computing platform. This
is considerably cheaper (with an economic TCO,
or total cost of ownership) and also has options
to expand storage quickly to profit from the good
times. It signed a service level agreement (SLA)
to guarantee the website would be permanently
available, because OZ’s priority is to be constantly
online, offering the best performance to customers.

Sophie Meert, e-business manager at OZ, summed
it up perfectly:
“The self-service platform ‘Mijn OZ’ is at the heart
of our online services, and we have optimised it in
terms of customer experience and personalisation.
Thanks to the level of integration at the heart of
the company, different departments can use the
platform to offer their services, to ensure quality
and to continually improve.“
“The new website is truly the beginning of OZ’s
digital transformation, strengthening our position
as the fastest-growing company in our sector. This
collaboration has evolved into a process of complete
and methodical digital transformation: the process
of Business Optimisation.”
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CIVB
Belgium’s favourite vintage
from Bordeaux
(Vins de Bordeaux)

Services: Strategy / Brand experience / Creative consultancy
Integrated Campaigns / Media
planning / Search marketing and
analysis / Social media /
User experience / Consultancy
Campaign / Branding

CLIENT

BRIEF

The CIVB (professional council for Bordeaux wines) is an
association that has represented the three areas that make
up the Wines of Bordeaux since 1948, in terms of wine growing, trading and brokering. Emakina Group’s media agency,
Robert & Marien, has worked for a number of years with its
media team to buy online and offline advertising space.

The CIVB has roughly the same budget every year, so it can The team developed a mixed marketing plan, making sure that
collaborate and plan over the long term. But, the limited size of different activities were well-timed, felt consistent and had
the budget does represent a challenge in terms of improving content that worked well together.
consultancy and media space purchases.
THE PRESS
This year, the client wanted to achieve more for its money,
We chose different titles in each language, corresponding to
attracting consumers and helping them discover the pleasures
the target group that the CIVB wanted to reach. Our experts
of wine tasting.
looked at the different consumer profiles and matched them
Its main issues were to increase the number of visits to its web- with the wide range of available media.
site, participants in competitions and newsletter subscribers.

In 2014, Robert & Marien started using AdExpert’s customised real time bidding (RTB) service to allow it to buy media
space at unbeatable prices. Thanks to this new service, the
collaboration with CIVB has grown – like a good wine, clearly
improving with age.

CIVB’s target audience – which it calls the ‘explorers’ – is amongst
gourmet food lovers aged 25 and over, and it wants to reach as
many women as men and as many single people as couples.
Its campaign needed to respect Belgium’s linguistic divide
(between French and Flemish) in its split of media investment.

SOLUTION
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POSTER CAMPAIGN
Thanks to a widely-distributed poster campaign, our
team drew the spotlight to the new visual identity of
Vins de Bordeaux. Spots were chosen strategically
to maximize the impact on the fun-loving, target
audience, and the posters were rolled out carefully
throughout the year.
DIGITAL
The digital campaign met the CIVB’s three objectives,
increasing traffic to the Vins de Bordeaux webpage
and attracting greater numbers of participants in
different competitions organised by the organisation
each year. Subscriptions to the newsletter reached
161% in 12 months. This was all done through our
new online tool AdExpert, which uses Real Time
Bidding (RTB) to snap up advertising space.
Robert & Marien is a partner in AdExpert, and a strong
believer in this innovative way to purchase online and
standard advertising space for the lowest price. The
tool makes the same budget buy more space, giving
greater visibility, more clicks, and extra success for
the CIVB and for all of our agency’s clients.

RESULTS
The campaign generated more than 91 million contacts and reached almost 93% of its target audience.
Vins de Bordeaux’s website increased its traffic tenfold. The association’s partner websites were also
used to promote the campaign, helping increase
the visibility of the site.
The ‘real time bidding’ for our online campaigns,
meant our customer paid considerably less per 1000
adverts (CPM rate, or cost per thousand), and also
reduced its ‘cost per click’ (CPC).
Wine gets its colour, taste and character from the
magical mixture of different grape varieties. We
translated a similar kind of alchemy into our media
buying strategy, to get heady results for the high
quality wines produced in the Bordeaux region.
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MAYBELLINE
Kiss my buzz

149

We decided this project had all of the elements to
make Maybelline Belgium’s Facebook page into
‘the big sister you never had’: someone who would
explain how to use make-up, chat about the latest
trends, inspire and encourage you… to become the
woman you dream of being! The conversation that
we created on Facebook set the stage for subsequent campaigns, ‘I kiss you - Baby Lips’ and ‘Go
Extreme - No Photoshop.’

Services: Social media
Strategy / Web design
Applications

FLY TO NEW YORK
BRIEF
Maybelline New York empowers women by helping
them to explore new looks but respecting their
individuality… And it wanted to do the same kind of
thing via Facebook.

CHALLENGE
Our team needed to attract young people and build
a strong relationship with them by showing them
how to use their make-up correctly. We also wanted
to highlight the brand’s innovations and increase the
number of products added to shopping baskets!

We ran this promotion through several campaigns.
First, our Social team invited the target audience
to ‘like’ the Maybelline Belgium Facebook page for
a chance to fly to New York, where the brand is
based. Each new ‘like’ got all of the participants a
kilometre closer, and the Facebook cover picture
reflected the virtual journey of the plane towards
the Big Apple.
A combination of web banner adverts, targeted
advertising on Facebook plus efficient use of media
and community management brought the cosmetics
brand 16,221 new fans in just three weeks.
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NO PHOTOSHOP GO EXTREME
To paint Maybelline into people’s daily
life, rather than the realms of models
photographed in studios and retouched
on Photoshop, we decided to involve
fans in a ‘grass roots’ campaign with a
photographic competition to promote
Colossal Go Extreme! mascara and its
colossal results.

I KISS YOU - BABY LIPS
For the launch of the new moisturizing lip balm Baby
Lips, the brief was simple: we needed to create a
relevant buzz online.
The target audience: young people who want to tell
their friends how much they like them on Facebook.
So we created the first application that lets you send
your beaux a kiss online…because the more you kiss
‘em, the more you need Baby Lips!
We created a game in which you have to kiss 10 of
your friends, playing against the clock, with your
friends appearing randomly. If they get a kiss, they
get a notification.

In this ‘selfie’ contest, real-life make up
fans were asked to show that the new
mascara’s effects were real by posting
an un-retouched image of themselves
and their mascara-d lashes. The more
votes they got, the more ‘colossal’ their
selfie became. Two lucky winners were
then selected as brand ambassadors
and appeared in a video tutorial about
the mascara.

RESULTS
The Baby Lips game was played 22,464 times with an average of six
friends per user. A significant proportion (35%) of users shared the game,
contributing to the recognition and success of the new product.
‘Go Extreme - No Photoshop’ attracted 1,805 shares, 11,895 pictures
got a ‘like’ and 82% of the traffic came from users sharing the site with
their friends.
Maybelline has made a real impact on Facebook, reaching more than
80,000 Belgian fans, 80% of whom were amongst its target audience.
The team created 325 posts for fans, and had a 79% rate of response
to questions we asked them. This campaign created, in the end, a very
active community that contributed more than 103 posts, including 30%
of the page content.
On average, each post was ‘liked’ 103 times, had 22 comments and 5
shares. The annual engagement rate was 0.65 %. These were excellent
results in the competitive and fast-moving environment of social media!

AWARDS
Your Agency proved itself a real star of the Belgian social media market
by winning not one but two IAB MIXX Awards with its client Maybelline.
The cosmetics giant, owned by L’Oréal, won the prize for ‘Best Social
Media brand’ and the brilliant launch of Baby Lips was awarded ‘Social
Media Campaign’ of the year.
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GLOSSARY
A/B OR MULTIVARIATE TESTING

AUGMENTED REALITY

BRICK AND MORTAR

DASHBOARD

A method of analysis involving two versions (A and B) of an
interface: A represents the version currently being used, and
B is a version with a change that may influence consumer or
user behaviour. ‘Multivariate testing’ refers to testing several
changes at the same time.

When computer systems superimpose a virtual 3D or 2D model
on someone’s perceptions, in real time, this is known as augmented reality. There are different ways of projecting realistic
virtual objects onto the real world. They might involve visual
perception (with virtual images overlaying actual images) or
other forms of sensory perception such as touch or hearing.

A traditional sales company operating through physical outlets
in real-life buildings, as opposed to an e-commerce operation
where sales are made online.

The dashboard is a visual interface that presents data in a
simple way.

ABOVE THE LINE (ATL)

BACK OFFICE

An Above The Line campaign promotes a brand, product or
service through the mass media (press, TV, cinema, radio, or Management information system for something that is not
billboards).
directly related to clients, such as stocks, form processing
or purchase orders. In general, the back office represents all
parts of an organisation without direct customer contact, for
ADVERGAMING
instance, accounting, production, and IT.
Using games or video games to promote a brand, service or
product.

BACK-END & FRONT-END

The front-end refers to the visible part, in other words, the user
interface of a computer program. The back-end means the
part of a program that performs the ‘invisible operations’, such
This is a partnership between a site editor and a commercial site
as processing data or management operations (for example,
that wants to develop its online sales or reap a larger number
updating content that is visible in the front-end).
of requests for quotations. The commercial site, known as the
‘merchant’ suggests an affiliation with a site that wants to promote
its traffic – known as the ‘affiliate’. This affiliate agreement lays
BELOW THE LINE (BTL)
down the commission the affiliate will receive by contributing
This refers to a promotional campaign for a brand, service or
to the sale of products or services at the merchant site.
product aimed at an audience that is more precisely defined
than simply consumers of the mass media (see ‘Above the line’).
AGILE
It may involve advertising via mail or e-mail, specific events,
catalogues or demonstrations at the points of sale.
Agile methodologies take the systems used to develop computer
projects (like designing software) and apply these to all kinds of
project. The ‘Agile manifesto’ written in 2001 describes a set of
BIG 4
methods that are more pragmatic than traditional ones, giving
the client the maximum input and responding even better to ‘The Big 4’ means the world’s four largest auditing and business
client demands, with all this laid out in a development contract. services groups (DTT, EY, KPMG and PwC).
Agile methods are based on a common development cycle
(iterative, incremental and adaptive) and four common values
(the team, the application, collaboration and accepting change). BITTORENT
These common values are broken down into 12 principles.
This is a P2P (peer to peer) data transfer protocol, based on
peer to peer downloading of files or fragments of a file. These
fragments can arrive in any order and from multiple sources,
API
and the file is effectively downloaded when all segments have
In computing, the program interface (often referred to as the API arrived. Network efficiency is greatest when there are a lot of
or Application Programming Interface) of a computer system users because all of those who are downloading help build what
provides services to other bits of software. It is provided by a they are downloading.
software library, and is usually accompanied by a description
of how consumers can use its features.

AFFILIATE MARKETING

BOUNCE RATE

The percentage of online visitors who leave a web page without
consulting other pages on the same site.

CM
A Community Manager takes charge of interaction and exchanges with netizens on behalf of a brand or company, and
brings that brand or company’s official social media to life. The
evolving role also involves moderating online communities.

CMS (CONTENT MANAGEMENT SYSTEM)
Computer system providing businesses and organisations with
a set of features allowing them to manage the content of a
website quickly and easily.

CONTENT MARKETING
Content marketing is a marketing strategy that involves a
company creating and distributing media content to win
new customers. The content might be informative, useful or
fun, and can be presented in the guise of news, videos, white
papers, ebooks, computer graphics, case studies, practical
guides, Q&As, photographs, forums, and corporate blogs – to
name a few possibilities.

CRM (CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIP
MANAGEMENT)
All marketing operations that try to improve the relationship
with customers, increase loyalty, and maximize sales figures
or profit margins. CRM includes data analysis on clients, marketing and support operations. It uses all available channels
to connect with clients. More specifically, CRM can mean all
of the technology used to manage customer relations. CRM
typically aims to offer a customer (or a prospective one) products and services that are most likely to be of interest, based
on the available data about this person.

CUSTOMER JOURNEY
The customer journey refers to all interactions that take
place between a user (often referred to as a ‘persona’) and
a brand or company, from the first point of contact to the
completion of an objective (such as purchase or registration).
It also refers to online interactions with a brand or company.

DIGITAL NATIVES
Digital natives are people who grew up with information and
communications technology, as opposed to digital immigrants
who had to ‘convert’ to IT tools at the start of the digital era.

DIGITAL MARKETING SHOPPER
All activation techniques to increase online sales. This is also,
by extension, a technology that can use its knowledge of the
behaviour of online shoppers to influence their choice between
several similar products or services at the moment of purchase.

DIRECT MARKETING
Direct marketing is a communication and sales technique that
sends a customised, incentivising message to targeted individuals or companies, to obtain an immediate and measurable
response. It is based on the use of databases and all forms of
communication that allow a quick response and a way for the
target audience to give this response.

EYE TRACKING
This refers to recording (filming) and analysing the eye movement of somebody using a product, service or interface. The
technique was originally used in marketing to assess advertising
(print and display) and create packaging. Eye tracking is now
part of many web marketing applications. It is used to measure the usability of web sites and e-mails, and to analyse how
eye-catching advertising slots might be. The goal is generally
to follow the movement of the eye after a first look, measure
how long it rests and where it focuses.

FRAMEWORK
The libraries, tools and conventions behind application development, the framework enables faster development (because
tools are provided) and makes the application more easily
adaptable by using a standard methodology. Its components
are organised to interact well with each other.

FULL-STACK JAVASCRIPT
The Full Stack Javascript approach is to develop websites or
applications using only Javascript as a programming language,
both for the front-end and back-end side.
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FUNNEL TRACKING

MULTI-CHANNEL

RETARGETING

A funnel is a type of graphical analysis created by audience
analysis tools to show how many visitors become customers
(the conversion rate), plus the steps or pages on which these
visitors are lost. Funnel tracking is the process of monitoring
this. On a web sales page, funnel tracking generally begins at
the page where a product is placed in a shopping trolley and
ends on the order confirmation page.

A multi-channel experience links the user to all a brand’s
channels of communication and sales at the same time. No
channel is isolated; instead, they are all integrated around the
user, who is at the centre of this marketing strategy.

Retargeting shows users personalised adverts, all over the The waterfall model is a sequential design process used in the
web, based on products or services they previously found on software development industry, where progress is visualised as
a website. This is to encourage them to return to that website. a waterfall-like cascade through the following stages of design:
idea, launch, analysis, design, building, testing, production /
implementation and maintenance. The term is mainly used
ROI (RETURN ON INVESTMENT)
by those using agile methodologies based on an iterative (or
cyclical) approach instead.
A financial ratio that measures the amount of money lost or
gained relative to the sum initially spent.

NATIVE ADVERTISING

Native advertising is a form of online advertising that aims to
attract consumer attention by delivering content through a user
GAMIFICATION
experience. This advertising format varies according to the form
Gamification is the use of game mechanisms and game de- and function of the medium that is being used. In this sense,
sign methods in non-playing contexts to encourage certain it is similar to an infomercial, but native advertising tends to
behaviour, develop certain skills or engage people in an ap- be clearer about its intentions. The aim is to make advertising
plication process.
less intrusive and increase the likelihood that the user clicks
on the advert. The most common form of native advertising
is a sponsored article on a specialised blog.

GRP (GROSS POINT RATING)

The GRP represents the level of pressure that an advertising
NATIVE APPLICATION
campaign puts on a defined target audience. It is calculated
in terms of the average number of opportunities that 100 A mobile application developed specifically for the current
people in the target group have of being in contact with the systems used on smartphones and tablets (for example, iOS
advertising campaign.
and Android).

INBOUND MARKETING

PERSONA

Inbound marketing is a marketing strategy to bring customers to you rather than going off to find them with traditional
marketing techniques. Content marketing is a type of inbound
marketing that attracts the attention of prospective customers
by posting high quality site content so it is ranked highly on
search engine listings and shared on social networks.

An imaginary character who represents a target group. When
designing a website, you might need to define several personae,
each representing a type of potential visitor. These personae
make it easier to incorporate the needs and aims of future site
visitors, when the site is being designed. The result is improved
website usability and ergonomics.

INTERACTIVE INSTALLATION

POS

An interactive installation aims to draw prospective custom- Point Of Sale.
ers out from simply watching into the role of participants in
an experience, whether this is artistic, promotional, scientific
or something else. All of the senses, technologies, forms of RE-MARKETING
artistic expression and media may be used to create the most
Re-marketing is a technique to provide repeat visitors to a
enveloping experience possible.
website with commercials about the products and services
that they have already browsed on that website.

KPI (KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS)
Key performance indicators measure the success of a company RESPONSIVE
or one of its activities. They are typically identified at the start
Responsive design describes websites and applications where
of a project and then measured after execution, so they can
the presentation of content adapts to the platform used, to
show whether the solutions that were used were effective and
make them more usable, ergonomic and easier to navigate.
whether they need to be adapted.
Responsive design aims to provide the most relevant content
and features for the computer or device used, assuming that
people have different expectations of a web system depending
LINK BUILDING
on the way they are accessing it.
Link building or netlinking is increasing the number of hypertext
links that lead to a web site from other sites that attract the
target audience. These hyperlinks may be created by trading
exchanges or buying links. The objective is to improve rankings
in search engines.

WATERFALL

WEB SERVICES
SEA (SEARCH ENGINE ADVERTISING)

A web service is a means of communication between two
electronic devices, using a network. It is a software functionality
SEA means advertising on search engines, and the process
enabled by the Web and permanently available. Similar to API,
of buying this advertising space.
it is an interface offered by the producer’s system and made
available to other consumer systems.

SEO (SEARCH ENGINE OPTIMISATION)
A technique to improve the ranking of a website in search
engine results.

SLA (SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT)
Contract or part of a contract specifying all levels of service to
be provided by the IT service provider to the customer. It is a
formal and binding commitment between a service provider and
client. A maintenance contract typically specifies the maximum
response time, depending on the type of incident reported.

SOCIAL MEDIA MARKETING
A marketing technique to increase traffic to a website or enhance the awareness of a brand or business, by using social
media. This usually means producing quality content that
users are encouraged to share, so that the message is spread
by electronic word-of-mouth (EWoM). This is more effective
than obvious advertising.

OPERATING SYSTEM
Computer software that makes a computing device work (for
example, a computer, smartphone or tablet). The most common
are Android, iOS, Windows, OSX and GNU Linux.

USABILITY
The usability is the user’s perception of the effectiveness
(ability to perform a task) and efficiency (how long it takes to
do it well) of software, a website, a mobile application or any
digital interface.

VIRTUAL REALITY
Virtual reality is a computer simulation that is interactive,
immersive, visual, audible and/or sensitive to touch. It might
conjure up a real or imaginary environment.
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